
The PRESIDENT put sub-paragrapli_ (iii) as_ 
amended to the vote. 

Sub-paragraph (iii) was adopted by 15 votes 
with 3 abstentions. 

There •was no objection to the fifth USSR 
amendment ( E/1183) which affected merely the 
_Russian text of item ( 10) of sub-paragraph (a). 

Mr. TsARAPKIN (Union- of Soviet Socialist­
Republics) -confirmed that the representative of 
the United Kingdom was correct in assuming that 
the change in the wording of the Russian text 
still preserved the Russian equivalent of the 
word "and" which in the English text appeared 
before the words _"to assist them". 

Mr. 0RDONNEAU (France) asked that the 
French text of item (10) of sub-paragraph .(a) 
be corrected by the insertion of the words ainsi 
q1-t' between etranger and a l' aider, so as to ensure 
a proper translation of the passage in question. 

The PRESIDENT indicated that that would be 
done. 

He then put to a vote the draft resolution as 
a whole submitted by the Social Committee as 
amended during the preceding votes. 

The resQlution was adopted by 15 votes to 3. 

Mr. TsARAPKIN (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics) stated that since the resolution had 
been voted on as a whole, he had been obliged to 
vote against it, since his delegation's, amendment 
had not been accepted and that there were a _ 
number of other points which were not accept­
able to him. Had all the various parts of the 
resolution been voted upon separately, he would 
have voted in favour of items 8 and 10 of 
sub-paragraph (a) of the third section of the 
operative part. 

Mr. SKOROBOGATY (Byelorussian Soviet Social­
- ist R~public) associated himself with the re­

marks of the USSR representative. 
- The meeting -rose -at 1.20 p.m. 

TWO HUNDRED AND FIFTIETH 
MEETING 

Held at Lake Sztccess, New York, 
on ·Thursday, 24 February 1949, at 2.30 p.m. 

President: Mr. J~mes· THCiRN (New Zealand). 

-52. Continuation of the discussion on 
the worid economic Situation, ("Maa 
jor Economic Changes in 194W', 
"Review of International Commodity 
Problems, 1948", E/1111, E/ 
1111/ Add. I, E/1084 and E/1180) 

Mr. TsARAPKIN (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics) stated that the report of the Depart­
ment of Economic Affairs contained certain 
information worth noting. The USSR delegation 
considered that the following facts should be 
pointed out. 

The statistical grouping of countries was in­
correct and did not take into account the various 
development stages of national economies. The 
report did not, therefore, give an exact picture 
of the world economic situation. Information 

Le PRESIDENT met aux voix l'alinea iii1 ainsi 
amende. 

Par 15 voix cont1·e zero, avec 3- abstentions, 
l' alinea iii) est ado pte. 

Le c~nquieme amendement de l'URSS (E/ 
1183), qui n' affecte que le texte russe du point 10 
de l'alinea a), ne souleve aucune objection. 

M. TSARAPKINE (Union des Republiques socia­
listes sovietiques) declare que la modification du 
texte russe. maintient !'equivalent du mot and qui, 
dans le texte anglais, precede les mots to assist 
them. 

M. ORDoNNEAU (France) demande que le texte 
du point 10 de l'alinea a) soi.t corrige par !'inser­
tion des mots "ainsi qu' " entre les mots 
"etranger" et ·"a I' aider", afin d'assurer une 

-traduction correcte du passage en question. 

Le PRESIDENT declare qu'il en sera fait ainsi. 

II met alors aux voix !'ensemble du projet de 
resolution soumis ·par le Comite social, ainsi qu'il 
a ete amende au cours des votes precedents. 

Par 15 voix contre 3, Ia resolution est adoptee. 
M. TsARAPKINE (Union des Republiques socia- · 

listes sovietiques) declare que, puisque le projet 
de resolution a . ete mis aux voix. dans son en­
semble, il a ete oblige de se prononcer contre ce 
projet. En effet, les amendements proposes par 
sa delegation n'ont pas ete adoptes, et il ne pouvait 
accepter un certain nombre d'autres points. Si 
les differentes parties de la resolution avaient ete 
mises aux voix separement, i1 aurait vote en 
faveur des points 8 et 10 de l'alinea a) de la troi­
sieme partie du dispositif. 

M. SKbRoBoGATY (Republique socialiste sovie­
tique de Bielorussie) s'associe aux remarques 
faites par le representant de l'URSS. 

La seance est levee a 13 h. 20. 

DEUX-CENT-CINQUANTIEME SEANCE 

Tenue a Lake Success, New-York, 
le jeudi 24 jevrier 1949, a 14 h. 30. 

President: M. James THORN '( N ouvelle-Zelande) . 

52. Suite de Ia discussion sur Ia situation 
economique mondiale ( "Les change· 
ments principaux dans le domaine 

· economique en 1948", "Rapport 
sur les prohlemes internationaux 
relatifs arix produits de base, 1948'', 
E/1111, E/1111/ Add.1, E/1084 
et E/1180) 

M. TsARAPKINE (Union,des Republiques s_ocia­
listes sovietiques) declare que le rapport du 
Departement des questions economiques contient 
un certain nombre de renseignements qui meritent 
de retenir !'attention. La delegation de l'URSS 
estime qu'il convient d'insister sur les considera­
tions suivantes. 

Les groupements statistiques de pays sont in­
corrects et ne tiennent pas compte des differents 
degres de developpement des economies nationales. 
Par consequent, le rapport ne fournit pas un 
tableau exact d_e la situation economique mondiale. 

278 



gathered during the year 1948 was presented in 
such a .way that data relating to capitalist coun­
tries were mingled with those referring to the 
USSR and the people's democracies. Further, 
no distinction had been made between informa­
tion regarding countries which had reached their 
pre-war level of production, that relating to coun­
tries with stationary .or retrograde economies, or 
that relating to the defeated countries- Germany, 
Japan and Italy- whose economic level was 
lower still because of the policy of certain occu­
~tying countries which were endeavouring to 
increase their own production at the expense of 
·~he defeated countries. 

!!n addition, not only were the data given in 
the report incorrectly grouped, since the various 
r:onditions and levels of economic development 
'Yere rfot taken into consideration, but certain 
~~lformation regarding the USSR had been purely 
~nd simply falsified. Thus on page 4 of the report, 
tille USSR appeared in a column listing countries 
the output of which had increased from 10 to 
25 per cent in the first nine months of 1948 in 
comparison with 1947. But official figures pub­
li.shed by the Government of the Soviet Union 
5~howed that output both for the first nine months 
r.irtd for the whole of 1948 was 27 per cent higher 
tlrtan that of 1947. 

The report did not give any real analysis of 
the reasons for which certain countries, in par­
ticular those participating in the Marshall Plan, 
had experienced serious economic difficulties, or 
the reasons why those countries had not developed 
econoinically. The report did not make dear the 
fact that it was the policy of the United States 
to impede the development of countries dependent 
on it. . . 

Lastly, certain questions were only lightly 
touched- upon, as for example the level of and 
increase in unemployment, the cutting down of 
real wages and the scandalous increase in the 
wealth of small groups of· capitalist monopolists. · 

-lje considered, therefore, that the Secretariat's 
:eport contained manifest deficiencies, thus giv­
mg a false idea of the world economic situation. 
!o show the latter in its true light Mr. Tsarapkin 
mtended therefore to make an analysis of the 
fundamental economic differences · between the 
USSR and the people's democracies on the one 
hand and capitalist countries on the other. , 

During the year 1948 the USSR had achieved 
notew?rthy success in the application of the post­
war F1ve-Year Plan (1946-1-950). Marshal Stalin 
had stated that the essential aims of that Plan 
were; on the one hand, the reconstruction of the 
war-devastated areas and, on the other, to in­
crease economic activity to a par with and beyond 
the pre-war level. The year 1948 had been one of 
decisive importance in the application of . the 
Five-Year Plan; thanks to the enthusiasm of 
the 'workers and the socialist ·co-operation, the 
Plan's targets for 1948 had been surpassed-. That 
was a great victory for the Soviet people and a 
noteworthy success for socialist industry. 

The 1948 targets for industry had been sur­
passed by 6 per cent and the general index figure. 
for industrial output in 1948 had exceeded that 

Les renseignements accumules pendant l'annee· 
1948 'sont presentes de telle maniere que l'on 
melange les donnees relatives aux pays capitalistes 
et celles qui sont relatives a l'URSS et aux demo­
craties populaires. On ne distingue pas non· plus 
entre les renseignements relatifs a des_pays qui 
ant atteint leur niveau de production d'avant­
guerre, entre ceux des pays dont l'economie est 
stationnaire ou en regression et les renseigne­
ments relatifs aux pays vaincus -l'Allemagne, 
le J apon et l'Italie- dont le niveati economique 
est encore plus bas en rais·on de la politique de 

_certains pays occupants qui s'efforcent d'aug­
menter leur propre production aux depens .des 
pays vaincus. · 

De plus, non seult~ment les renseignements pre­
sentes dans le rapport ne sont pas groupes de 
fa~on correcte, puisque l'on ne tient pas compte 
des conditions et des niveaux de developpement 
economique differents, mais certains renseigne.: 
ments relatifs a l'URSS sont simplement falsifies: 
c'est ainsi que, a la page 5 du rapport, l'URSS 
figure dan·s une colonne contenant les pays dont 
Ia production a augmente, dans les neuf premiers 
mois de 1948, de 10 a 25 pour 100 par rapport 
a 1947. Or, les renseignements officiels publies 
par le Gouvernement de !'Union sovietique man­
trent que la production, tant au cours des neuf 
premiers ~ois de 1948 que pendant cette annee 
tout entiere, a ete superieure de 27 pour 100 a la 
production de 1947. · 

On ne trouve dans Ie rapport aucune veritable 
analyse des raisons pour lesquelles certains pays, 
en' particulier les -pays faisant partie du Plan 
Marshall, ont eprouve des difficultes economiques 
serieuses, ni des raisons pour lesquelles ces pays 
ne se sont pas developpes. Le rapport ne fait pas 
ressortir le fait que la politique des· Etats-U nis 
vise a faire obstacle au developpement des pays 
qui dependent d'eux. 

Enfin, certains problemes ne ·sont qu'effieures, 
comme par exemple ·Ie niveau et l'accroissement 
du chomage, la diminution des salaires reels et 
l'accroissement monstrueux de Ia richesse de petits 
groupes de monopoles capitalistes. 

Le represe~tant ·de l'URSS estime par conse­
quent que Ie rapport du Secretariat presente des 
insuffisances notoires et qu'ainsi il donne une idee 
fausse de Ia situation economique mondiale. Afin _ 
d~ montrer celle-ci sous son vrai jour, M. Tsarap­
kme propose d'analyser Ies differences econo­
miques fondamentales qui existent entre l'URSS 
et )es democraties populaires, d'une part et Ies 
pays capitalistes, d'autre part. . ' 

Au cours de l'annee 1948, l'URSS a obtenu un 
suc.ces remarqua~le en ce qui concerne l'appli­
catwn du plan qumquennal d'apres-gtierre (1946-
1950). Le generalissime Staline a declare que Ies 
buts essentiels que vise ce plan sont, d'une part, 
la reconstruction des regions devastees par la 
guerre et, d'autre part, l'accroissement de ·I'adi­
vite economique jusqu'au 'niveau et ensuite au 
dela du niveau d'avant-guerre. L'annee 1948 a 
ete d'une importance decisive en ce qui concerne 
l'~pplication du plan de cinq ans; grace a l'enthou­
smsme des travailleurs et a Ia concurrence socia­
liste, les buts du plan pour 1948 ant ete depasses. 
II. s_'~~t Ia d'u,ne I?a~nifique ;ictoire d? peuple 
sov1et1que et d un mstgne succes pour l'mdustrie 
socialiste. 

-
Les buts que l'on se fixait en 1948 pour l'iFidus­

trie ant ete depasses de 6 pour 100 et l'indice 
general de la. production industrielle en 1948 a 

27Q 



of 1947 by 27 per cent. The latter figure was an 
increase of 22 per cent over the index figure for 
1946, which itself had exceeded by 20 per cent 
that of 1945. 

Owing to rapid industrial development ·the 
pre-war ( 1940) industrial production level had 
peen reached in 1947 and exceeded by 18 per cent 
in 1948 in spite of vast war destruction. Trans­
portation services had also greatly improved. 
The .flow of goods had increased by 27 per cent 
as compared with 19:!7, and had surpassed the 
pre-war level. In three years more than 4,000 
government industrial undertakings had been 
established or reconstructed. 

· depasse de 27 pour 100 ceiui d-e 1947. Ce dernier 
indice etait deja en augmentation de 22 pour 100 
sur l'indice de Ia production en 1946, qui avait · 
lui-meme depasse de 20 pour 100 celui de 1945. 

Grace a un developpement industri.el rapide, le 
niveau de Ia production industrielle d'avant-guerre 
( 1940) a ete atteint en 1947 et d~passe de 18 pour 
100 en 1948, malgre les enormes 'destructions 
causees par Ia guerre. Les transports se sont aussi 
considerablement ameliores. Le mouvement des 
marchandises a augmente de 27 pour 100 par 
rapport a 1947 et a depasse le niveau d'avant­
guerre. En trois ans, plus de 4.000 entreprises 
industrielles gouvernementales ont ete crees ou 
reconstruites. 

In spite of unfavourable weather conditions En depit de conditions meteorologiques defavo-
in the Volga area the grain harvest in the entire rabies dans Ia region de Ia Volga, Ia recolte de 
USSR had exceeded 7,000 million pouds (a poud cereales dans !'ensemble de l'URSS a depasse 
equals 40 lbs.) and thus was near the 1940 pro- 7 milliards de pouds (un poud vaut 40 livres) et 
duction figure. Again, the average grain yield se rapproche ainsi de Ia production de 1940. 
per hectare had outstripped the pre-war yield. · D'autre part, le rendement moyen par hectare . 
As compared with 1947, the crop area during . des cereales a depasse celui d'avant-guerre. L'ac­
the 1948 season had increased by 13,800,000 bee- croissement des superficies ensemencees au cours 
tares, of which 10 million hectares were under de Ia campagne de 1948 a ete de 13.800.000 bee­
gram. tares par rapport a 1947, dont 10 millions pour 

· Increase in agricultural production had re­
sulted in an improve.ment in livestock. In the 
kolkhoz:es, the number of horned cattle heads 

- oh 1 January 1949 had increased by 23 per cent 
as compared with 1 January 1948; the number 
of pigs by 75 per cent; the number of sheep and 
goats by 16 per cent, and horses by 15 per cent. 
Cattle at the free disposal of collective farmers, 
workers and employees had also increased. 

Agricultural undertakin-gs were being better 
and better equipped. D~tring 1948, they had re­
ceived from the State three times as many -trac­
tors and twice as many motor vehicles and agri­
cultural machines as in 1940. Generally speaking, 
the Government contemplated still further meas­
ures to aid and improve the work of the kol­
khozes. 

Moreover, in 1948 the peasants had made, tre­
mendous efforts to change the face of the land, 
conserve the soil and rotate crops and therefore 
there was a prospect of having even better crops 
in the future. In the steppes of Etiropean Russia, 
an area of 199,000 hectares had been planted with 
trees in 1948, and the ground had been prepared 
for the planting of a further 270,000 hectares in 
1949. In addition 1,869 - million trees had been 
planted in nurseries and 2,800 reservoirs built. 
Only a socialist State could put into operation 
such a gigantic programme for the utilization of 
natural 'resources. 

Particularly strenuous reconstruction efforts 
had been made in the areas which had been under 
German occupation, where investments had 
an1otinted to 20,000 million roubles in 1948, with­
out taking into account non-.centralized invest­
ments. The reconstruction of industry in those 
areas had proceeded with ever-increasing rapid­
ity. In 1946 there was an increase of 28 per 
cent over 1945 production; in 1947 the increase 
had been 33 per cent, and in 1948, 41 per cent: 
In 1948 production of pig-iron had increased by 
41' per cent, steel by 66 per cent and sheet-metal 
by 65 per cent. Electricity production had in­
creased by 31 per cent, cement by 49 per cent and 
sugar by 75 per cent. Thus the national e<;onomic 

les cereales. ' ' -

L'augmentation de Ia production agricole a 
entraine une amelioration de l'elevage. Dans Ies 
kholkozes, au ler janvier 1949, le nombre de tetes 
de gros betail a comes a augmente de 23 pour 
100 par rapport au 1er janvier 1948, le nombre 
de pores de 75 pour 100, le nombre de moutons 
et de chevres de 16 pour 100 et le nombre de 
chevaux de 15 pour 100. Le hetail dont les 
kholkoziens, ouvriers et employes, peuvent dis­
poser librement a aussi augmente. 

Les entreprises agricoles sont de mieux en 
mie~x equipe.es : a.u cours de 1948, elles ont re~u 
de I Etat trots fots plus de tracteurs, deux fois 
plus d'automobiles et deux fois plus de machines 
agricoles qu'en. 1940. De fa<yon generate, le Gou­
vet;l.ement env;~~age encore d'autres mesures pour 
facthter et amehorer le travail des kholkozes. 

D'autre part, les paysans se sont livres-en 1948 
a une lutte gigantesque pour Ia transformation de 
Ia nature, Ia conservation du sol et Ia pratique de 
l'assolement, ce qui permet d'esperer des recoltes 
enco~e meilleures a l'avenir. Dans Ies steppes de Ia 
Russte d'Europe, des arbres ont ete plantes sur 
une superficie de 199.000 hectares en 1948 et 
!'on a prep~re le terrain sur 270.000 hectares pour 
les plantatwns de 1949. En outre, 1.869 millions 
d'arbres ont ete mis en pepinieres, et 2.800 re­
servoirs ont ete coristruits. Seul un Etat socialiste 
pouvait appliquer un programme aussi gigantesque 
d'utilisation des ressources naturelles. 

La .reconstruction des regions soumises a l'oc­
cupatton allemande a fait !'objet d'un effort 
particulierement energique: en 1948, les investis­
sements y ont atteint une valeur de ·20 milliards 

_de roubles, sans tenir compte des investissements 
non centralises. La reconstruction de l'industrie 
de ces regions s'est effectuee a un rythme sans 
c.esse accelete: on y notait en 1946 une augmenta­
twn de 28 pour 100 sur Ia production de 1945; 
en 1947, !'augmentation etait de 33 pour 100, et 
de 41 pour 100 en 1948. En 1948, Ia pro­
duction de fonte a augmente de 41 pour 100, 
celle de l'acier' de 66 pour 100, celle des produits 
lamines de 65 pour 100. La production de 
l'electricite a augmente de 31 pour 100, celle du . 

280 



plai-1 had been put into operation with complete 
success and the pre-war levels exceeded. 

That industrial development had been accom­
panied by an increase in the number of manual 
and other workers; throughout the entire eco­
nomic structure their number had increased by 
2 million in 1948, and their total number had risen 
by 10 per cent as compared with the 1940 figure. 
During the last three years the number of manual 

. and other workers had increased' by 6,200,000. 

Further, the Governmetit had instituted a 
gigantic technical education programme for work­
ers. In 1948 a million qualified workers had been 
trained at technical schools and factory and 
railway apprenticeship centres, and working par­
ties and other methods of instruction had been 
used to train 2,300,000 new qualified workers and 
to promote 3,800,000 other workers to a higher 
professional status. Those figures showed the 
interest taken by the Government in the training 
of labour. 

Improvement m agricultural and industrial 
production had enabled the Government of the 
Soviet Union to carry out an important monetary 
reform and to abolish rationing as early as the 
end of 1947. 

As a result, Soviet economy had been strength­
ened and the well-being of the worker substan­
tially improved. In 1948 the amount of wages of 
manual and other workers had increased by 10 
per cent as compared with· 1947. As a result 
of the general fall in prices the purchasing power 
for the rouble had doubled. That fact, along with 
the increase in nominal wages, had resulted in 
the real wages of workers in 1948 being more 
than double what they had been in 1947. 

That success clearly showed the considerable 
advantages of socialist States, the chief aim of 
which was to improve the condition of the 
people by increased production. 

He emphasized the fact that new. housing 
constructed in 1948 amounted to a habitable 
surface of approximately 51 million square metres. 
In rural areas alone, 1,600,000 houses had been 
built and rebuilt' in the same period. The great 
efforts made by the USSR Government in con­
nexion with the welfare, culture and health' of 
the population in towns and in rural areas should 
be noted. Social and economic improvement was 
the result of everyone's co-operation, workers, in­
tellectuals and peasants alike,· and entirely de­
pended on the use of internal resource·s. The pro­
ductivity of workers was constantly increasing. 
Friendly rivalry in socialism had become a real 
national movement. The USSR Government was 
trying to reduce production costs. The aims of 
the 1948 plan to reduce industrial cost prices had 
been exceeded.· Total savings over and above the 
targets set in the plan to reduce industrial cost 
prices had amounted to more thari 6,000 million 
roubles in 1948. 

-

All those results showed the superiority of the 
socialist economic system which freed workers 
from capitalist slavery and exploitation and thus 
'made real miracles possible. 

ciment de 49_ pour 100 et celle du sucre de 75 
pour 100. Ainsi, le plan economique national 
s'est trouve mis a execution avec un succes com­
plet et les niveaux d'avant-guerre ont ete depasses. 

Ce developpement de l'industrie s'est accom­
pagne d'une augmentation du nombre des ouvriers 
et employes; dans !'ensemble de l'economie, leurs 
rangs se sont accrus de 2 millions en 1948 et leur 
nombre total est superieur de 10 pour 100 a ~e 
qu'il etait en 1940. Au cours des trois dernieres 
annees, le nombre des ouvriers et employes a 
augmente de 6.200.000 . 
~-

Par ailleurs, le Gouvernement s'est lance dans -. 
!'execution d'un programme gigantesque d'educa­
tion technique des travailleurs. En 1948, les ecoles 
techniques et les centres d'apprentissage des usines 
et des chemins de fer ont forme un million 
d'ouvriers qualifies; les _brigades de · travail et 
autres moyens d'instruction ont forme 2.300.000 
ouvriers qualifies nouveaux et ont permis a 
3.800.000 autres travailleurs de passer a une 
categorie professionnelle superieure. Ces chiffres 
montrent l'inten!t que porte le Gouvernement a 
la formation professionnelle de la main-d'ceuvre. 

L'amelioration de la production agricole et 
industrielle a permis au Gouvernement de !'Union 
sovietique d'executer des la fin de 1947 une re­
forme monetaire importante et d'abolir le 
rationnement. 

Le resultat est que l'economie sovietique est 
renforcee et que le bien-etre des travailleurs s'est 
accru d'une maniere sensible: le montant des 
salaires des ouvriers ef employes a augmente en 
1948 de 10 pour 100 par rapport a 1947.· Par suite 
de la baisse du niveau general des prix; le pouvoir 
d'achat du rouble a double. Ce fait,. joint a 
1'augmentation des salaires nominaux, a eu pour 
effet de porter le salaire reel des travailleurs 
en 1948 a plus du double de ce qu'il etait en 1947. 

C~s ,succes montrent clairemegt .les . a vantages 
constderables des Etats socialistes dont le but 
essentiel est d'ameliorer Ia condition du peuple 
par un accroissement de la production. . 

Le representant de l'URSS souligne que les 
nouveaux logen1ents qui onf ete construits dans 
les trois annees d'apres-guerre -representent une 
surface habitable d'environ 51 millions de metres 
carres. Dans les seules regions rurales, on a· pro-

. cede durant la meme periode a la construction et 
a la reconstruction de 1.600.000 habitations. II 
convient de souligner les efforts remarquables 
realises par le Gouvernement de l'URSS en ce 
qui coricerne le bien-etre, la culture et la sante 
de la population, tant dans les villes que dans les 
campagnes. L'amelioration sociale et economique 
resulte de la cooperation de tous, ouvriers, paysans 
et intellectuels et depend de !'utilisation des seules 
ressources interieures. La productivite de la main-

. d'ceuvre est en augmentation constante. La concur­
rence socialiste est devenue un veritable mouve­
ment national. Le Gouvernement de l'URSS 
s'efforce de diminuer les couts de production: les 

. buts du plan d'abaissement des prix de revient 
dans l'industrie pour 1948 ont ·ete depasses. L'ico-
nomie totale effectuee en plus des buts prevus par 
le plan d'abaissement des prix de revient dans 
l'industrie s'est elevee, en 1948, a plus de 6 mil­
liards de roubles. 

Taus ces resultats montrent Ia superiorite du 
systeme economique socialiste . qui libere les 
travailleurs de l'esclavage et de !'exploitation capi­
talistes et permet ainsi d'accomplir de veritables 
miracles. 

281 



I ~ 

Very appreciable progress could also be noted 
in the economy of the people's democracies. That 
development was the result of measures adopted ­
by the Governments of those' countries. He was 
referring particularly to the nationalization of 
the .major industries and banks and agricultural 
reform which had made possible the distribution 
of land to peasants. The ·economic development 
of those countries was based not only on - the 

- work of their inhabitants and on their internal 
resources, but also on their friendly co-operation 
and -the aid supplied by the USSR. 

Mr. Tsarapkin stressed that the industrial pro­
duction_ index figure for Czechoslovakia at the 
end of 1948 had reached 110 per cent of the 

-pre-war figure, and the industrial production for 
Poland 150 per cent. The Secretariat's report 
showed that, on the basis of 100 in 1938, the in­
dustrial production index figure for Polish heavy 
industry had reached 202 during the first nine 
months of 1948, and in Czechoslovakia it had 
reached 157 on the basis of 100 in 1937. 

In the field of mechanical industry, the Czecho­
slovak production index figure was 194 on the 
basis of 100 in 1937, and the index of Polish pro­
duction had -risen to 236 on the basis of 100 in 
1938. The pig-iron and steel production index 
was 107 for Czechoslovakia and 121 for Poland. 
As far as the chemical industries were concerned, 
Czechoslovak pro~uction had risen to 121 on the 
basis of 100 in 1937 and Polish production to 206 
on the basis of 100 in 1938. The entire Czecho­
slovak two-year plan had been _ 101.5 per cent 

- accomplished. 

, He added that agricultural and industrial pro_­
duction had improved in Bulgaria and Hungary. 
The 1948 grain harvest especially had been vastly 
superior to .that of 1947. It could thus be said 
that the economic position of the USSR and the 

·people's democracies was constantly improving, 
which could not be said of the ·capitalist coun- ­
tries which had either not suffered from the war 
or which had suffered much less than the USSR 
or the new .democracies. 

The characteristic features of the situation in 
which the capitalist countries found themselves 
in 1948 were uneven development and -economic 
instability, as was shown by the fall and slowing 
down in production in many countries, the low 
level of production in the defeated countries be­
cause of the policy of ce1tain occupying Powers, 
the increase in unemployment, inflation, taxation, 
the fall in living standards in the case of large 
sections of the population and the enormous in­
crease in the profits of monopolies. Although, as 

-the Secretariat's report indicated, world indus-
trial production had increased by 11 per cent dur­
ing the first nine months of 1948 as compared 
with the same period in 1947, that increase had 
been only 4· per cent in comparison with the last 
quarter of. 1947. It would therefore appear that 
the increase was slowi-ng down considerably. 
Moreover, it should be noted that the inclusion 
of the USSR in the world index, the industrial 
production of which had increased by 27 per 
cent in 1948, tended to cover up a much greater 
slowing down or even a standstill or a-falling .off. 

On a pu constater aussi un developpement 
extfemement sensible de l'economie des demo­
craties populaires. _Ce _ developpement tire son 
origine des mesures adoptees par les Gouverne­
ments de ces pays; le representant de l'URSS 
fait allusion en particulier a Ia nationalisation des 
grandes industries et des banques ainsi qu'aux 
reformes agraires qui ont permis Ia distribution 
des terres aux paysans. Le developpement econo­
mique de ces pays est fonde non seulement sur le 
travail de leurs habitants et sur leurs ressources 
interieures, mais encore sur leur entraide mutu­
elie· et !'assistance amicale que leur 'fournit 
l'URSS. 

M. Tsarapkine souligne que l'indice de Ia pro­
duction industrielle en Tchecoslovaquie a atteint, 
a la fin -de 1948, 110 pour 100 de celui d'avant­
guerre, et l'indice de Ia production industrielle 
polonaise, 150 pour 100. Le rapport du · Secre­
tariat montre que l'indice de la production de 
l'industrie lourde au cours des neuf premiers mois 
de 1948 a atteint 202 en Pologne sur la base 100 
en 1938 et 157 en Tchecoslovaquie sur la base 
100 en 1937. 

Dans le domaine de l'industrie mecanique, 
l'indice de Ia production tchecoslovaque se situe 
a 194 sur Ia base 100 en 1937, et l'indice de Ia 
production ' polonaise s'eleve a 236 sur la base 
100 en 1938. L'indice de la production de Ia fonte 
et de l'acier est de 107 pour la Tchecoslovaquie 
et de 121 pour la Pologne. En ce qui concerne les_ 
industries chimiques, Ia production de Ia Tche­
coslovaquie s'est elevee a 121 sur la base 100 en 
1937 et Ia production polonaise a 206 sur Ia base 
100 en 1938. L 'ensemble du plan de deux ans de 
la Tchecoslovaquie a ete realise dans Ia proportion 
de 101,5 pour 100. 

Le representant de l'URSS ajoute que la pro­
duction industrielle et agricole s'est amelioree en 
Bulgarie et en Hongrie. La recolte de cereales, 
en particulier, a ete en 1948 de beaucoup supe­
rieure a celle de 1947. On peut done constater 
que la situation economique de l'URSS et des 
democraties populaires va sans cesse s'ameliorant, 
ce qui ne peut etre dit des pays capitalistes qui 
n'ont pas souffert de Ia guerre ou qui en ont 
beaucoup moins souffert que l'URSS ou les 
democraties nouvelles. 

La situation des pays capitalistes en 1948 est 
caracterisee par l'inegalite du developpement et 
par l'instabilite economique. Ce fait est demontre 
par la baisse ou le ralentissement de la production 
dans de nombreux pays, le bas niveau de produc­
tion des pays vaincus, dfi a la politique de certaines 
Puissances occupantes, -!'augmentation du 
chomage, de !'inflation, des impots, la baisse du 
niveau de vie de larges parties de la population 
-et l' enorme accroissement des profits des mono­
poles. Si, comme l'indique le rapport du Secre­
tariat, l'accroissement de_ la production indus­
trielle mondiale a ete de 11 pour 100 au cours 
des neuf premiers mois de 1948, par rapport a 
Ia meme periode en -1947, cet accroissement · n'a 
ete que de 4 pour, 100 par rapport au dernier 
trimestre de 1947. II apparait dop.c que cet accrois­
sement subit un ralentissement appreciable. II 
convient d'ailleurs de remarquer que !'inclusion de ~ 
l'URSS - dont la production industrielle a 
augmente de 27 pour ~00 en 1948- dans l'indice 
mondial tend a masquer un ralentissement beau­
coup plus considerable ou meme un etat station­
naire ou une baisse. 

282 



i 

In the United. -States and in Italy the- index 
of industrial production, during the first nine 
months of 1948, had gone down _as compared 

-with the last quarter of 1947. In the United King­
down and in Canada the increase had been some­
what weak. The report showed that the fall in 

. industrial production in many capitalist couQ.-
,tries during the third quarter o~ 1948 was greater 
than the usual seasonal falL 

The United States was the only capitalist coun­
try which had come 9ut of the war economically 
stronger. The War had allowed it to develop its 
industry and its e)!:.ports to Europe. The capitalist­
monopolies were endeavouring to maintain profits 
. at the level they had reached during ~he hostilities. 
American industrial output was, however, lower 
at the present time than it had been during the 
war. It was only 80 per cent of the 1943 level, 
the year during which peak production had been 
reache~. In spite of very large orders for war 
material in 1948, the general index had not gone 

,-up and, in some branches, a decrease in produc- · 
tion had been noted. That was true of th~ engi­
neering industry, transport ~quipment, textiles, 
footwear and rubber. 

Be stressed the fact that . the report of th,e 
Secretariat did not in any way indicate the 
baneful influence that the United States exercised 
on world economy by its armaments race and 
foreign trade -policy ; the report attempted on 
the contrary to· disguise the part played by the 
United States by . references to high levels of 
pro_duction and employment. . 

Mr. Tsarapkin then examined the economic 
sit1:1ation of the capitalist countries of Western 
Europe, the entire economy of which was based 
on obtaining American credit. Belgium, Greece 
and Italy had not attained their pre-war produc- ­
tion levels. In 1948, the index of industrial pro­
duction in Belgium had been 7 per cent lower 
than in 1947. The ~all in production had begun 
to make itself felt from the month of April 1948. 
Mr. Tsarapkin mentionecf some of the industries 
in which a decrease in production had been re­
corded: the textile, metallurgical, tractor, leather, 
wood, shipbuilding and other industries. He 
quoted from a Belgian newspaper which acknow- . 
!edged tl~at the decrease in orders received by · 
mdustry m that country had been ca·used by the 
Marshall Plan. 

During the first nine months of 1948, France 
had· only reached 99 per .cent of its 1937 level of 
industrial production. Steel production was 91 per 
cent of the 1937 level, the production of cast iron 
82 per-cent, textile production 97 per cent and 
automobile production 91 per cent: Shipbuilding 
as well as the automobile industry and factories 
manufacturing locomotives had met with very 
serious difficulties in 1948. 

Mr. Tsarapkin stressed the fact that the com­
petition of United States consumer goods had re­
sulted in the ruining of French national produc­
tion. Likewise, many other countries receiving 
Marshall Plan "aid" were experiencing serious 
economic difficulties. That was far from surpris­
ing. In fact, the only purpose o{ the Plan was to 

, Durant les neuf premiers mois de.1948, aux 
Etats-Unis et en Italie, 1:-indice de la production 
industrielle a diniinue par rappot:t au dernier 
trimestre de 1947; dans le Royaume-Uni ou au 
Canada, -r'augm~tation a ete assez faible. Le 
rapport montre que la baisse. de la production 
industrielle de nombreux pays capitalistes au cours 
du troisieme trimestre _de 1948 est plus grande 
que la baisse saisonniere habituelle. 

Les Etats-Unis sont le se~l pays capitaliste 
sorti de la guerre economiquement plus fort. La 
guerre lui a permis de developper son industrie 
et ses exportations vers !'Europe; les monopoles 
capitalistes s'efforcent de maintenir leurs profits 
au niveau que ceux-ci avaient atteint pendant les 
hostilites. Cependant, la production . -industrielle · 
americaine est maintenant inferieure a ce qu'elle 
etait pendant laguerre. Elle n'atteint que 80 pour 
100 du.niveau de 1943, annee au cours de laquelle 
avait ete realisee la production la plus massive. En 
depit des commandes de guei-re t'res importantes 
effectm!es au cours de 1948, l'irtdice gen~ral n'a 
pas augmente, et l'on a observe, dans certaines 
branches, une diminution de Ia production. C'est 
le cas pour l'industrie p1ecanique, le materiel de 
transport, les textiles, les chaussures et le 
caoutchouc. 

Le representant de l'URSS souligne que- le 
rapport du Secretariat · n'expose nullement !'in­
fluence nefaste que les Etats-Unis exerceilt sur 
l'economie mondiale par leur course aux arme­
ments et leur politique· du commerce exterieur ; 
ce rapport s'efforce au contraire de camoufier 
ce role des Etats-Unis par des considerations sur 
les hauts niveaux de Ia ·production et de l'emploi. 

M. Tsarapkine examine ensuite Ia· situation 
economique des . pays capitalistes de !'Europe 
occidentale dont toute l'_economie est basee sur 
!'obtention de credits americains. La Belgique, Ia 
Grece et l'Italie n'ont pas atteint leur niveau de 
production d'avant-guerre. L'indice de la produc­
tion industrielle en Belgique a ete, en 1948, inie­
rieur de 7 pour .100 a celui' de 1947. La baisse de 

-Ia production a commence a se faire sentir a partir 
du mois d'avri11948. M. Tsarapkine cite quelques­
unes des industries ou une diminuation de Ia 
production a ete enregistree: les industries textile 
et metallurgique, .Ia construction- de tracteurs, 
le cuir, le bois, les constructions navales, etc. II . 
cite un extrait d'un journal beige qui reconnait . 
que Ja diminuation des· commandes re<;ues par 
les industries de ce pays est causee par le Plan 
Marshall. 

La France, dans le domaine de Ia production 
industrielle, n'a atteint au cours des neuf premiers 
mois de 1948 que 99 pour 100 du niveau de 
1937. La production d'acier repn!sente 91 pour 
100 du niveau de 1937, Ia production de fonte 
82 pour 100, Ia production de textiles 97 pour 100 
et Ia production automobile 91 pour 100. Les 
constructions navales, ainsi que l'industrie auto­
mobile et les entreprises de construction de loco­
motives, . ont affronte en 1948 de tres grandes 
difficultes. 

M. Tsarapkine souligne que la concurrence des 
produits de consommation americains a pour effet 
de_ ruiner Ia production nationale fran<;aise.' De 
meme, de nombreux autres pays recevant t' "aide" 
du Plan Marshall eprouvent de serieuses difficultes 
economiques. Cela n'a rien -d'etonnant. -En effet; 
C:e Plan n'a pour obiet que de mettre les pays de 



make the countries of Western Europe politically 
and economically dependent upon the monopolies 
which ruled the United States, \vithout taking 
into account the national interests of these coun­
tries. Dqubtless it would be contended that the 
Marshall Plan was a . work of salvation, but 
American dollars were benefiting not the peoples 
of the countries of Western Europe but the 
capitalists of those countries. United States cred­
its were being _used not to rebuild rival European 
industries but to guarantee United States mono­
polies the biggest European outlets. 

It was interesting to point out that only 399 
million dollars had been allocated in 1948 to capi­
tal goods under the Marshall Plan. That only 
represented 9 per cent of the total credit author­
ized and revealed the true nature of the "aid" 
thus granted. Mr. Monnet, who had drawn up the 
French plan for modernization and industrializa­
tion, acknowledged in his 1948 report that the 
situation created by the Marshall Plan was purely 
artificial and that the Plan yvas fraught with 
dangers. Mr. Tsarap1dn quoted an excerpt from 
the weekly Truth which admitted that . the coun­
tries of Europe were obliged to submit to the will 
of the directors of the Marshall Plan. In February 
1949 the Dutch newspaper N ederlander had ex­
pressed its disagreement with the United States 
policy, explaining that, economically, Holland was 
completely under the domination of the United 
States. That newspaper had pointed out that, 
whenever the United States plans differed from 
those o~ the Netherlands, the United States threat­
ened to apply economic sanctions. The article 
concluded that Holland was becoming a satellite 
country and a nation of slaves. 

Western European newspapers were full of 
data showing the increase in unemployment in 
those countries. Mr. Spaak himself had been 
obliged to admit that there were 300,000 unem­
ployed in Belgium. That unemployment was dear­
ly· the direct result of the Marshall Plan and of 
the policy of the statesmen who supported the 
Plan. 

The United .Kingdom, which after the war had 
benefited from very sizeable loans from the 
United States and Canada, and which had been 
ailotted the niajor part of the assistance granted 
under the Marshall Plan, had only surpassed its 
pre-war level of production by 9 per cent; but 
the 1937 level had not yet been reached in the 
mining and textile indust:ies. 

Mr. Tsarapkin then went on to the situation of 
the defeated countries. The industrial reconstruc­
tion of Italy had practically halted since the 
autumn of 1947, after the Italian Government had 
capitulated to United States nionopolies. The re­
port of the Government showed that the level of 
industrial production in Italy in 1948 was only 
78 per cent of the pre-war level. The majority 
of businesses were only working at 45 to 50 per 
cent of production capacity. The metallurgical 
industry was working at 80 per cent of capacity, 
the extractive industries at 70 to 80 per cent i the 
mec,h_anical, textile, shipbuilding and other indus­
tries were meeting with the greatest difficulties. 
Of 15 shipyards, only 4 were working approxi­

'mately 35 per cent of capacity. The Italian Gov­
ernment, however, had at the same time bought 
105 Liberty ships from the United States; half of 
the freight senf to Italy under the Marshall Plan 

!'Europe occidentale sous Ia dependance politique 
et economique des monopoles qui dirigent les 
Etats-Unis, sans tenir compte des inten~ts natio­
naux de ces pays. Sans doute pretend-on que le 
Plan Marshall est une ceuvre de salut, mais les 
dollars americains profitent non pas aux popula­
tions des pays de !'Europe occidentale, mais aux 
capitalistes de ces pays. Les credits americains 
servent, non pas a reconstruire les industries 
europeennes concurrentes des Etats-Unis, mais 
a garantir aux monopoles americains de plus 
grands debouches en Europe·. 

I1 est interessant de souligner que 399 millions 
de dollars seulement ont ete affectes en 1948 a 
l'equipement industriel au titre du Plan Marshall. 
Cela ne represente done que 9 pour 100 du total 
des credits autorises en 1948 et revele le veritable 
caractere de 1' "aide" ainsi accordee. M. Monnet, 
qui a elabore le plan de modernisation;et d'equipe­
ment franc;ais, reconnait dans son rapport pour 
1948 que la situation creee par le Plan Marshall 
est purement artificielle et que ce plan presente des 
dangers. Le representant de l'URSS cite un ex­
trait de l'hebdomadaire Truth qui reconnait que 
les pays europeens sont contraints de se soumettre 
a Ia volonte des dirigeants du Plan Marshall. Le 
journal hollandais N ederlander exprimait, en 
fevrier 1949, son desaccord avec Ia politique 
americaine, precisant que, dans le domaine finan­
cier et economique, la Hollande se trouve sous Ia. 
dependance totale des Etats-Unis. Ce journal 
indique que les Etats-Unis, lorsque leurs plans 
different de ceux des Pays-Bas, menacent ceux-ci 
de sanctions economiques. La conclusion· de 
!'article etait que Ia Hollande devenait un pays 
satellite et une nation d'esclaves. 

Les journaux de !'Europe occidentale sont 
pleins d'informations montrant la croissance du 
chcn:nage dans ces pays. M. Spaak lui-meme a 
du reconnaitre qu'il existait 300.000 chomeurs 
en Belgique. I1 est clair que ce chomage est Ia 
consequence directe du Plan Marshall et de Ia 
politique -des hommes d'Etat qui soutiennent 
!'application de ce plan. 

Le Royaume-Uni, qui a beneficie depuis Ia 
guerre de prets tres importants accordes par les 
Etats-Unis et le Canada, et qui s'est vu attribuer 
Ia majeure partie de I' "aide" octroyee au titre 
du Plan Marshall, a depasse en 1948 de 9 pour 
100 son niveau de production industrielle d'avant­
guerre. Cependant, le niveau de 1937 n'a pas 
encore ete . atteint dans les houilleres ni dans 
l'industrie textile. 

M. Tsarapkine passe a la situation des pays 
vaincus. La reconstruction industrielle de l'Italie 
est pratiquement arretee depuis l'aHtomne de 
19-t7, apres Ia capitulation du Gouverne1i1ent 
italien devant les monopoles americains. Le 
rapport du Secretariat montre que le niveau de 
production industrielle de l'Italie en 1948 ne 
represente que 78 pour 100 du nivea:u d'avant­
guerre. La majorite des entreprises ne travaille 
qu'a 45-50 pour 100 de leur capacite de produc­
tion. L'industrie metallurgique travaille a 80 pour 
100 de sa capacite de production, les industries 
extractives a 70-80 pour 100; les industries 'me­
caniques et textiles, les constructions navales, 
etc., affrontent les plus grandes difficultes. Sur 
15 entreprises de constructions navales, 4 seule­
ment travaillent a environ 35 pOt\r 100 de leur 
capacite de production. Le Gouvernement italien 
a cependant achete 105 liberty ships aux Etats-

?QA 



was transported jn United States ships. The dif­
ficulties exp/erienced by the Italian economy­
which had given rise to tremendous unemploy­
ment- had· enabled United States monopolies to 
acquire cheaply a large number of concerns in 
the automobile, engineering and mineral:oil in­
dustries. All these facts indicated to what extent 
Italian economy had passed into the control of 
United States monopolies. 

Mr. Tsarapkin noted that in Bizonia, industrial 
production was at an extremely low level. The 
Anglo-American policy, in fact, was to seize 
the greater part of the coal, scrap-iron and wood, 
and to slow down the development of non-military 
industries, which explained the low level of indus­
trial production in Western Germany. The indus­
tries of Bizonia were henceforth submitted to the 
control of United States monopolies and their 
activity was directed towards an increase in the 
war potential. United States capitalistic interests 
were attempting to suppress all concerns which 
might offer them dangerous competition. Th~s, at 
the beginning of 1948 the dismantling of two fac­
tories specializing in the production of spiral 
drilling-machines had been carried out in an ex­
tremely hasty manner. Those two factories had 
been the only ones o.f the type in Germany. After 
that decision the railway administration in that 
area had received a credit of 4 million dollars to 
buy those machines from a United States firm. 

The economic situation of Japan seemed even 
worse than that of Germany. The index of indus­
trial production for the.first nine months of 1948 
was only 31 per cent of the pre-war level. 

If the productiol1 of the defeated countries was 
thus maintained at a very low level, the reason 
had to be found in the policy of certain occupying 
Powers which were endeavouring to increase their 
own production at the ·e-xpense of those countries. 

The food shortage was still being felt in many 
capitalist countries in spite of the improved grain 
harvest in 1948. The crop of bread-grains in 
many countries of Western Europe was still below 
that of pre-war. The Marshall Plan did not at all 
aim at rehabilitating the agriculture of those 
countries but rather at ensuring a market for 
United States edible products. In that connexion 
it was interesting to note that, ofthe 1,666 million 
dollars allocated to agriculture under the Marshall 
Plan, only 6 millions, or 0.3 per cent, had been 
devoted to agricultural machinery. The automo­
bile manufacttirer Frazer had stated that the Mar­
shall Plan was assisting the European countries 
to subsist but that it did not in any way help them 
to start feeding themselves. 

The instability of the economic situation in the 
capitalist countries was shown by the increased 
inflation of 1948. He said that the cost of living 
in the United States had increased in 1948. The 
rise in the cost of foodstuffs and other essentials 
had been greater than the incr~ase in salaries; 
hence, real wages had gone down. President Tru­
man had declared in his Report to Congress that 
in 1948 the per capita consumption of many food­
stuffs had been lower than in preceding years. 
If was certain, furthermore, that the inflation 
111 the United States was bringing in its wake 

Unis; Ia moitie du fret expedie a l'Italie au titre 
du· Plan Marshall est transportee sur des navires 
americains. Les difficultes de l'economie italienne 
-qui ont suscite un chomage enorme- ont 
permis aux monopoles americains d'acquerir a 
bas prix un tres grand nombre d'entreprises dans 
le domaine de Ia construction automobile, des 
constructions mecaniques et des industries petro­
lieres. Tous ces faits indiquent dans quelle mestire 
l'economie italienne est passee sous le controle 

. des monopoles americains. . . 

M. Tsarapkine constate que, dans Ia Bizone, Ia 
production industrielle se situe a un niveau extre­
mement bas. La politique anglo-americaine consiste 
en effet a s'emparer de Ia majeure partie du 
charbon, de Ia ferraille et du bois, et a freiner 
le developpement des industries non militaires, ce 
qui explique le bas niveau de Ia production indus­
trielle en Allem~gne occidentale. Les industries de 
Ia Bizone sont desormais soumises au controle 
des monopoles americains. et leur activite est -
orientee vers un accroissement du potentiel de 
guerre. Les interets capitalistes americains s'effor­
cent de supprimer toutes les entreprises suscep-

, tibles de leur faire une concurrence dangereuse. 
C'est ainsi qu'au debut de 1948 il a . ete pro cede 
de fac;on extremement hative, au demantelement 

· de deux usines specialisees dans Ia production de 
perceuses-:spirales. Ces deux usines etaient les 
seules de ce genre se troi.tvant en Allemagne. A Ia 
suite de cette decision, !'administration des 
chemins de fer de cette region a rec;u un credit 
de 4 millions de dollars pour I'achat de ces ma­
chines a une firme americaine. 

La situation economique du Japan apparait 
encore plus mauvaise que celle de l'Allemagne. 
L'indice de Ia production industrielle pour les 
neuf premiers mois de 1948 ne represente que 
31 pour 100 de celui d'avant-guerre. 

Si Ia production des pays vaincus est maintenue 
a un niveau tres bas, il faut en voir Ia raison dans 
Ia politique de certaines Puissances occupantes 
qui s'efforcent d'augmenter leur propre produc­
tion aux depens de ces pays. 

La penurie alimentaire se fait toujours sentir 
dans de nombreux pays capitalistes,-malgre !'arne~ . 
lioration de Ia recolte de cereales en 1948. La 
recolte de cereales panifiables est encore infe­
rieure, dans de nombreux pays d'Europe occi­
dentale, a celle d'avant-guerre. Le Plan Marshall 
ne vise nullement a remettre en etat !'agriculture 
de ces pays, mais a assurer un debouche aux 

. produits alimentaires americains. A cet egard, 
i1 est interessant de constater que, sur 1.666 mil­
lions de dollars affectes a !'agriculture au titre 
du P lan Marshall, 6 millions seulement, soit 0,3 
pour 100, ont ete consacres au materiel agricole. 
Le constructeur d'automobiles Frazer a declare 
que le Plan Marshall aidait les pays europeens a · 
se nourrir, mais qu'il ne Ies aidait nullement a 
commencer a se nourrir eux-memes. . · 

L'instabilite de Ia situation economique des . 
pays capitalistes est demontree par !'augmenta­
tion de !'inflation en 1948. Le cout de Ia vie a 
augmente aux Etats-Unis en 1948. La hausse des 
prix des produits alimentaires et autres produits 
essentiels a ete superieure a !'augmentation des 
salaires; il s'est done produit une baisse des 
salaires reels. Le President Truman a declare, 
dans son rapport au Congres, qu'en 1948 Ia 
consommation de nombreuses denrees alimentaires 
par tete d'habitant avait ete inferieure a celle des. 
annees precedentes. 11 est cert~in, d'autre part, que 

285 



I. disturbing consequences .for other countries 
which imported United States goods and were 
depende~t on that country. 

The Secretariat's. report stressed the fact that 
in 1948 the cost of living in the United Kingdom 
·had risen by 7 per cent. The representative of 
the United Kingdom himself had pointed out 
that-from March to December 1948 the index of 
weekly wages had only increased 2 per cent. It 
could thus be concluded that real wages had de­
clined during the course of that year. 

In France the cost of living had been 57 per 
cent higher in the third quarter of 1948 than 
it had been in the corresponding period of 1947. 
The paper Le M ondi of 16 October 1948 had re­
cognized the f~ct that, although the Marshall Plan 
had been in effect for eight months the workers' 
buying power had nevertheless declined. 

In Belgium as weli as in-the other countries of 
Western Europe an increase in the cost of living 
could be noted which the Marshall Plan had in 
no way halted. The same was true of wholesale 
prices. On page 137 of the second Report to Con­
gress of-the United States Economic Cooperation 
Administration it was stated that from 1946 to 
1947 wholesale prices in France had- increased 80 
per cent and that during the first ten months of 
1948 they had increased 72 per cent. In the 
United Kingdom a rise of 10 per cent in wholesale 
prices in 1946-1947 and of 11 per cent in the first 
ten months of 1948 had been recorded. 

While the standard of living of workers was 
going down, the profits of capitalist monopolies 
were_ constantly increasing. According to the 
economic report . of President Truman, · total 
profits had risen to 34,000 million dollars in 1948 
as compared with 24,500 million dollars in 1943 
and 6,200 million in 1937. 

The Marshall Plan ensured enormous pros­
perity to the monopolies of the beneficiary coun­
tries but_ it did not,- however, solve the question 
of unemployment which was becoming more and 
more serious. The report of the Secretariat did 
not present that problem as it should have. The 
report named a few countries in which there were, 
however, 6,500,000 unemployed .. In fact, the num­
ber of unemployed in the capitalist countries was 
much higher because account had to be taken of 
the vast number of workers who were only em- . 
ployed part time. On 19 February 1949 The New 
York Times gave the number of unemployed in 

_ the _United States as 3 million. But, according to 
the Department of Commerce, 9,500,000 people 
were working less tqan thirty-five hours a week 
in January 1949, of whom 2,300,000 worked less 
than fifteen hours a week. 

In Western Europe, Italy, Germany and Bel­
gium were suffering from serious unemployment. 
The existence of an army of unemployed nieant 
a labour reserve for capitalists which enabled them 
to'dictate their conditions to the workers and to fix 

' their salaries under threat' of dismissal. The result 
of unemployment was a lowering in the standard 
of living of all the workers. _ 

The armaments race and the creation of aggres­
sive blocs by the United States and certain capi­
talist countries like the United Kingdom and 
France slowed down economic development and 
made international economic relations unstable. 
The armaments race increased the taxes which 

!'inflation aux Etats-Unis' entraine des ·conse­
quences facheuses pour les pays qui importent des 
marchandises americaines . et qui dependent des 
Etats-U nis. · 

Le rapport du Secretariat souligne qu'en 1948 
le cot1t deJa vie dans le Royaume-Uni a augmente 
de 7 pour 100. Le represent<J.nt du Royaume-Uni 
a lui-meme indique que, de mars a decenibre 1948, 
l'indice des salaires hebdomadaires n'a augmente 
que de 2 pour 100. On peut done en conclure 
que les salaires reels orif subi une diminution au 
cours de cette annee .. ' 

En France, le cm1t de Ia vie a -ete, pour le 
troisieme trimestre de 1948, superieur de 57 pour-
100 a celui de Ia periode correspondante de 
1947. Le journal Le Monde du 16 octobre 1948 a 
reconnu que, bien que le Plan Marshall soit en 
vigueur depuis huit mois, le pouvoir d'achat des 
travailleurs avait neanmoins diminue. 

En Belgique, ainsi que dans les autres pays de 
!'Europe occidentale, on a pu const'!-ter une aug- -
mentation du coUt de Ia vie que le Plan Marshall 
n'a nullement arretee. II en est de meme des 
prix de gros. On peut lire a Ia page 137 du 
deuxieme rapport de 1' Administration de coope­
ration economique des Etats~Unis au Congres 
que, de 1946 a 1947, les prix de gros en France 
ont augmente de 80 pour 100 et que, durant les 
dix premiers mois de 1948, ils ont augmente de 
72 pour 100. Dans le Royaume-Uni, on a enre­
gistre une hausse des prix de gros de 10 pour 100 
de 1946 a 1947, et de 11 pour 100 pendant les dix 
premiers mois de 1948. 

Tandis que diminue le niveau de vie des tra­
vailleurs, les benefices des monopoles capitalistes 
sont en augmentation constante. D'apres le rapport 
_economique du President Truman, le total des 
benefices s'est ·eleve a 34 milliards de dollars en 
1948 contre 24.500 millions de dollars en 1943 et 
6.200 millions en _1937. 

Le Plan Marshall assure une enorme prospe­
rite aux monopoles des pays beneficiaires, mais il 
ne resout pas, pour autant, Ia question du chomage 
qui devient de plus en plus grave. Le rapport du 
Secretariat ne presente pas cette question comme 
il aurait convenu. 'Le rapport cite un-petit nombre 
de pays ou le nombre de chomeurs atteint pourtant 
6.500.000. En fait, le nm:nbre des chomeurs dans 
les pays capitalistes est beaucoup plus eleve; il 
faut en effet tenir compte de l'enorme masse 
des chOmeurs partiels. The New York Times du 
19 fevrier 1949 cite le chiffre ·de 3 millions de 
chomeurs aux Etats-Unis. Mais, d'apres le De­
partement du commerce, 9.500.000 personnes 
travaillaient moins de trente-cinq heures par 
semaine en janvier 1949, dont 2.300.000 moins 
de _quinze heures par semaine. 

En Europe occidentale, l'Italie, l'Allemagne et 
Ia Belgique souffrent d'un chomage important. 
L'existence d'une armee de chomeurs constitue· 
un~ reserve de main-d'ceuvre pour les capitalistes, 
qm leur permet de dieter leurs conditions aux 
travailleurs et de fixer leurs salaires sous peine de 
renvoi. Le chomage a pour effet d'abaisser k 
niveau de vie de tous les travailleurs. 

La course aux armements et l'etablissement de 
blocs agressifs par les Etats-Unis et certains pays 
capitalistes_tels que le Royaume"Uni etla France 
freine le developpement economique et rend 
instables les relations economiques internationales. 
La course aux armements accroit les charges 

286 



weighed, heavily on the workers, lowered their fiscales -pesant sur les travaiiieurs, abaisse, leur 
standard of living and increased the profits of · niveau de vie et augmente les profits des mono­

. , the monopolies. He · pointed out that, in his own _poles. Le representant de l'URSS fait remarquer 
country, military expenditure had decreased in que, dans son pays; les depenses militaires dimi-

:. favou1~ of ·social and cultural expenditure, while nuent au profit des · depenses d'ordre social et 
in the tpree above-mentioned countries, they were culture!, alors que dans les trois pays cites plus 
growing steadily. Those military expenditures haut elles augmentent sans cesse.· Ces depenses 
were unproductive and helped to strain inter- militaires sont improductives et contribuent a 
national relations. The Council could not ignore tendre les relations internationales. Le Conseil ne · 
the squandering of enormous resources thus allo- doit pas ignorer !a dilapidation d'enormes res­
cated to preparations for war. sources ainsi affectees a la preparation de la 

It was advisable that attention be devoted en-
; tirely to the expansion of international trade. Such 

expansion was, however, made more difficult by 
the policy of trade discrimination followed by the 
United States, a policy which was contrary to the 
principles of the Charter and incompatible with 
the obligations assumed by the United States in 
trade agreements which it had concluded with 
other countries. The United States Government, 
furthermore, obliged other countries to follow 
a s_imilar policy: in that connexion a Clause in 
United States 1948 legislation on the Economic 
Cooperatjon Act provided that the delivery of 
supplies should be stopped if those countries did 
not adhere to the trade policy of the United States 
with regard to countries not taking part in the 
Marshall Plan. At the 248th meeting the repre­
sentative of Poland had presented irrefutable evi­
dence on the true purpose of the trade policy of 
the United States, which was opposed to all 
international economic co-operation and which 
tended to subject the trade of the .Western Euro­
pean countries to United States interests. · The 
Council had to be aware of those facts. 

. In conclusion the representative of the USSR 
stated that the world economic situation in 1948 
was characterized by the vast difference between 
the situation of the USSR and the people's de­
mocracies on the one hand, and that of the capi- · 
talist countries on the <;>ther. · 

In the USSR and in Eastern Europe a constant 
development of industrial production as well as 
an improvement in the well-being of the poj>Ula­
tion could be noted in 1948. 

In the capitalist countries, on the other hand, 
economic development was uneven, the situation 
was unstable, the increase in production had 
slowed down or halted, unemployment had in­
creased as also inflation and the profits of capital­
ist monopolies, while the standard of living of the 

· workers had gone down. · 

The United States discriminatory policy and the 
armaments race were undermining international 

· economic co-operation. 

He hoped that in its final report, as well as in 
the reports which it would draw up in the future, 
the Secretariat would take those remarks into 
account. 

Mr. THORP (United States of America) said 
that there was nothing new in the accusations 
made by the representatives of the USSR and 
Poland : they had already been made before the 
Council and at the General Assembly, when they 
had been refuted at length by the United States 
representative as well as by the representatives of 
other European countries against which accusa­
tions had also been made. Those replies had 

guerre. --

II convient d'accorder toute son attention au 
developpement du commerce international. Ce­
pendant, ce developpement est rendu plus difficile 
par !a politique de discrimination suivie par les 
Etats-Unis en matiere commerciale, politique 
contraire aux principes de la Charte et incompa­
tible avec les obligations assumees par les Etats­
Unis dans Ies accords commerciaux qu'ils ont 
conclus avec Ies autres pays. Le Gouvernement 
des Etats-Unis contraint d'ailleurs les autres pays 
a suivre une politique identique: a cet egard un 
article de la loi americaine de 1948 sur Ia coope: 
ration economique prevoit que la livraison des 
-fournitures aux pays beneficiaires du Plan 
Marshaii cessera si ces pays ne se conforment pas 
a ra·politique commerciale des Etats-Unis a I'egard 
des pays ne participant pas au Plan Marshaii. Le 
representant de Ia Pologne a apporte, au cours 
de Ia 248eme seance, des preuves irrefutables sur 
!'objet veritable de Ia politique commerciale d!'!S 
Etats-Unis, qui est contraire a toute cooperatiQn 
economique internationale, et qui tend a soumettre 
Ie commerce des pays de !'Europe occidentale aux 
interets des Etats-Unis.' Le Conseil ne doit pas 
ignorer ces faits. 

Le representant de l'URSS conclut. que Ja· 
situation economique mondiale en 1948 est carac­
terisee par une profonde difference entre Ia situa­
tion de l'URSS et des democraties populaires, 
d'une part,' et celle des pays capitalistes, d'autre 
part. 

En URSS et en Europe orientale, on a pu 
constater en 1948 un developpement constant de 
toute Ia productic:m et particulierement de Ia pro­
duction industrielle ainsi qu'une amelioration du 
bien--etre de !a population. 

Dans les pays capitaJistes, par contre, Ie d~­
veloppement economiq ue est in ega!, Ia situation 
est instable, !'expansion de Ia production est 
ralentie ou arretee, le chomage a augmente, ainsi 
que !'inflation et les profits des monopoles capi­
talistes, tandis que le niveau de vie des travailleurs 
a diminue. 

La politique de discrimination des Etats-Unis 
et Ia course aux armements sapent Ia cooperation 
eCOIJOmique internationale. 

Le representant de l'URSS espere que, dans son 
rapport definitif, ainsi que dans les rapports qu'il 
etablira dans I'avenir, le Secretariat tiendra 
compte de ces observations. 

M. THORP (Etats-Unis d'Amerique) rappelle 
que Ies accusations lancees par les representants 
de l'URSS et de Ia Pologne ne sont pas nouvelles: 
elles ont deja ete pre~ en tees au Coqseil et a 1' As­
semblee generale ou le representant des Etats­
Unis, ainsi que les representants de plusieurs pays 
d'Europe egalement accuses, les ont Ion~ement 
refutees. II semble que ces n!ponses n'ont pas 
atteint leur but puisque !'on a entendu _a nou:veau 

287 

. I 



apparently not achieved their aim ·since the same 
false interpretations and inaccurate statements 
had again been made. 

Mr. Thorp said that he would not expound anew 
the commercial policy of the United States but 
he would content himself with pointing out cer­
tain contradictions in the statements made by the 
representatives of the USSR and Poland .. -

It had been said that the food shortage in West­
ern Europe was due to a scarcity of seeds and 
fertilizers. However, the representative of Poland 
had himself replied to that accusation when he 
had mentioned the figure of 1,384,300,000 dollars 
as the value of fertilizers and foodstuffs imported 
into the· countries participating in the Marshall 
Plan. 

The United States had been accused of not 
sendin-g enough agricultural machinery to Europe. 
In that connexion, he pointed out that it took 

_longer to build and dispatch machinery than to 
send foodstuffs. Moreover, the Marshall Plan 
Administration intended to make a large in­
crease in the corsignments of agricultural machin­
ery and equipment in 1949, yet the United States 
had been accused of hindering the development 
of European industries. 

It had been stated that the Second ·world War 
had made the food problem especially acute, but 
that the physical effects of the war in Western 
Europe had disappeared. The representative of 
Poland had stated that food was plentiful in his 
country, yet another Polish representative had 
asked for extensive aid, in fact the largest share 
of aid, from ICEF for Poland. , 

The United States had been accused on the 
one hand of dumping at the expense of France, 
and on the other hand of having ordered the 
devaluation of the franc. However, the devalu- · 
ation of the franc was in complete contradiction 
to such dumping. Moreover, the United States 
Government had had nothing to do with the de­
valuation of the franc. 

·The United States had been accused of plac­
ing an embargo on certain products intended for 
Eastern Europe and of controlling the export 
policy of the countries of Western Europe. The 
fact remained, however, that trade between East­
ern and Western Europe was continually 
increasing. 

The United States had been accused of pro­
moting the reconstruction of Germany and of 
making it a centre of production in Europe, but it 
had been stated at the same time that the elimina-· 
tion of Germany and Japan from the world mar­
ket served to increase United States exports. 

The capitalists of the United States and West­
ern Europe had'been accused of making enormous 
profits out of Germany. However, at the same 
time it had been pointed otit that Western Ger­
many had received nothing but gifts from the 
Marshall Plan Administration, amounting to 738 
!11illion dollars; that was obviously a fine method 
for making profit. 

The United States had been accttsed of failing 
to carry out the agreements on reparations, which 
meant the failure to dismantle a sufficient number 
of factories, but, on the other hand, complaints 

les memes fausses interpretations et les memes 
inexactitudes. 

M. Thorp declare qu'il n'exposera .pas a 
nouveau Ia politique commerciale des Etats-Unis 
mais qu'il se bornera a relever certaines contra­
dictions. dans les declarations des representants 
de l'URSS et de la Pologne. 

On a declare que la penurie alimentaire de 
!'Europe occidentale provenait d'une penurie de 
semences et d'engrais. Or, le representant de la 
Pologne a lui-meme repondu a cette accusation 
en citant le chiffre de 1.384.300.000 dollars, repre­
sentant la valeur des importations d'engrais et de 
produits alimentaires dans les pays du Plan 
Marshall. 

On a accuse les Etats-Unis de ne pas envoyer 
assez de machines agricoles en Europe. M. Thorp 
rappelle a ce sujet qu'il faut plus de temps pour 
construire et expedier des machines que pour 
envoyer des produits alimentaires. D'ailleurs 
!'administration du Plan Marshall prevoit une 
forte augmentation dans les expeditions de ma­
chines agricoles et de biens d'equipement en 
1949, mais l'on accuse les Etats-Unis d'entraver 
la croissance des industries europeennes. · 

On a declare que la deuxieme guerre mondiale 
avait rendu particulierement aigu le probleme de 
la penurie de denrees alimentaires mais que, 
cependant,Jes effets physiques de laguerre avaient 
ete effaces en Europe occidentale. Or, si le repre­
si:mtant de la Pologne a declare que la nourriture 
etait a.bondante dans son pays, un autre repre" 
sentant de la Pologne a demande au FISE d'ac-­
corder a la Pologne des secours etendus, en fait_ 
la part la plus large. 

On a accuse d'une part les Etats-Unis de faint 
du dumping aux depens de Ia France et d'avoir, 
d'autre part, ordonne Ia devaluation du franc. 
Or, la devaluation du franc va directement a 
l'encontre d'un tel dumping. D'ailleurs, le Gou­
vernement des Etats-Unis n'a rien eu a voir avec 
la devaluation du franc. 

On a accuse les Etats-Unis d'appliquer un 
embargo sur certains produits a destination de 
!'Europe orientale et de controler la politique 
d'exportation des pays d'Etirope occidentale. Or, 
c'est un fait que les echanges commerciaux entre 
!'Europe orientale et !'Europe occidentale ne ces­
sent de s'accroitre. 

On a accuse les Etats-Unis de reconstruire 
l'Allemagne et d'en faire un centre de production 
en Europe, mais l'on declare en meme temps que 
!'elimination de l'Allemagne et du Japon des 
marches mondiaux sert l'accroissement des ex­
portations des Etats-Unis. 

On a accuse les capitalistes des Etats-Unis et 
d'Europe occidentale de tirer des profits enorme~ 
de 1' Allemagne, mais on signale en meme temps 
que !'administration du Plan Marshall n'a fait 
a l'Allemagne occidentale que des dons se montant 
a 738 millions de dollars ; c' est, la, evidemment, 
une excellente technique pour titer des profits. 

On accuse les Etats-Unis de ne pas executer 
les accords sur les reparations, c'est-a-dire de ne 
pas demonter suffisamment d'usines, mais on se 
plaint par ailleurs du demantelement de deux 

288 



had been made about the dismantling of two ma­
chinery factories the production of. which would 
be sorely missed by Germany. 
· The United States had been accused of making 
Bizonia an American island, but such measures 
as the internationalization of the Ruhr had appar­
ently been forgotten. 

The United States shareholders of the Hugo 
Stinnes Corporation had been accused of attempt­
ing to increase tha,t company's interests in the 
coal industry, but the policy of devolution had 
been fo.rgotten and no mention had been made of 
the stupendous increase of foreign property in 
the Soviet Zone. 

Mr. Katz-Suchy had forecast an imminent 
crisis in the United States. If that were the case 
the surplus of exports over imports should be on 
the increase. In actual fact, it was on the 
decrease. 

lVIr. Thorp did not think that rates of increase 
in production, taken by themselves, formed a 
sufficiently firm basis for comparison between 
various economies. The rates of increase might 
well be spectacular if the industry under consid­
eration started from a very low level. Such a 
c1'iterion had no value when applied to mature 
economies in well developed countries. How could 
it- be said that the United States economy was 
defective simply because the total production had 
not risen by 27 per cent in the period from 1947 
to 1948? 

In his opmwn the true criterion was quality· 
and the cost of production. The United States 
economy had reached a very high level in 1943. 
That should be considered as a very fortunate 
fact because it showed the capabilities of United 
States economy, but it should be remembered that 
it had only been possible to achieve such a level 
of production by asking the workers to work 
longer hours. Thus the increase in. production 
had been a burden for the working class. An ad­
vance achieved under such conditions in peace­
time would be of doubtful value,. 

. If the crit~ria on which the USSR representa­
tlve based h1s arguments were accepted, it was 
the German economy which should be the ideal 

-~ecause the relative increase in German produc~ 
t10n between 1947 and 1948 had been extraordi­
nary. Perhaps the capitalist countries would have­
to updergo an occupation in order to achieve 
similar progress. 

Mr. Thorp said that it was an indisputable 
fact that the United States economy had made 
gre<~.t _Progress and had provided a high standard 
of hvmg for the people of the United States. He 
did not in any way regret the fact that United 
States production had not increased by 27 per 
cent between 1947 and 1948. United States econ:... 
omy was based on freedom, initiative and the 
spirit of invention. It was perhaps true that the 
totalitarian economies were able to make the 
greatest progress over a relatively short period of 
time. But he considered that, in the long run, it 
would be the free economies which would achieve 
the better results because they alone allowed the 
individual to express himself and make the greatest 
contribution to society. 

In conclusion, Mr. Thorp recalled the fact that 
his country ·had cordial and constructive rela-

usines d'outillage dont la production ferait cruel­
lement defaut a l'Allemagne. 

On accuse les Etats-U nis de faire de la Bizone 
une ile americaine, mais l'on oublie, par exemple, 
les mesures d'internationalisation de la Ruhr. 

On accuse les actionnaires americains de la 
Hugo Stinnes Corporation de vouloir augmenter 
!'importance de cette entreprise dans l'industrie 
du charbon, mais l'on oublie la politique de de­
concentration et on ne mentionne pas l'accroisse­
ment prodigieux de la propriete etrangere en zone 
sovietique. 

M. Katz-Suchy predit une crise imminente aux 
Etats-Onis. Dans ce cas, l'excedent des exporta­
tions sur les importations americaines devrait 
s'accroitre. En fait, il diminue. 

Le representant des Etats-Unis estime que les 
comparaisons entre diverses economies ' faites 
uniquement sur des pourcentages d'accroissement 
de production n'offrent pas une base solide. En 
effet, les pourcentages d'augmentation peuvent 
tres bien etre spectaculaires si l'industri~ que I' on 
etudie part d'un niveau tres bas. Un tel criterium 
n'a plus de valeur lorsqu'on !'applique a des eco­
nomies mitres dans des pays bien developpes. 
Comment peut-on dire que l'economie des Etats­
Unis est deficiente, simplement parc·e que la pro­
duction totale n'a pas augmente de 27 pour 100 
de 1947 a 1948? / . 

_ Selon le representant des Etats-Unis, le crite­
rium veritable est celui de la qualite et du cout 
de production. L'economie americaine a atteint un 
niveau tres eleve en 1943; ce fait devrait etre 
considere comme extremement heureux, car il 
montre ce dont l'economie americaine est capable, 
mais il faut se souvenir qu'un tel niveau de pro­
duction n'a pu etre realise qu'en demandant aux 
travailleurs un plus grand nombre d'heures 1 de 
travail et qu'ainsi cet accroissement de production 
a ete un fardeau pour la classe ouvriere. Un 
progres realise dans ces conditions en temps de 
paix est d'une valeur assez douteuse . 

Si l'on accepte les criteriums soumis par le 
representant de l'URSS, c'est l'economie alle­
mande qui devrait constituer !'ideal, car !'augmen­
tation relative de la production allemande entre 
1947 et 1948 a ete extraordinaire. Peut-etre 
conviendrait-il que les pays capitalistes subissent 
une occupation pour realiser de pareils progres. 

M. Thorp declare qu'on ne peut nier les progres 
realises par l'economie americaine et le niveau de 
vie eleve qu'elle fournit aux Americains: II 
n'exprime aucun regret du fait que la production 
americaine n'a pas augmente de 27 pour 100 
entre 1947 et 1948: cette economie est fondee sur 
la liberte, l'initiativ~ et !'esprit d'invention. II est 
peut-etre vrai que ce soient les economies totali­
taires qui puissent faire les plus grands progres 
pendant une periode relativement 'breve. Mais le 
representant des Etats-Unis croit qu'en definitive 
et a long terme ce sont les economies libres qui 
arriveront a un meilleur resultat, car elles seules 
permettent a l'individu de s'exprimer lui-meme 
et de fournir la plus grande contribution a la 
societe. 

Enfin, M. Thorp rappelle qpe son pays entre­
tient avec de nombreux autres pays des relations 

289 

.I 
I 



tions with- many other countries and he was in. 
complete agreement with the r.epresentative of 
Poland at least on one point, namely that the 
relations between the USSR and Poland, for ex­
ample, were quite different from 'those existing 
between the United States and the countries par-
ticipating in the Marshall Plan. · 

Mr. MAYHEW (United Kingdom) regretted 
that the high standard of the discussion had been 

· lowered by the tone of certain speeches. The 
speeches made J:iy the representatives of the USSR 
and Poland contained accusations against many 
countries, of which the United Kingdom was one. 
He therefore considered it his duty to reply to 
those accusations.· 

He emphasized the fact that the Secretariat re­
port did not contain any statistics about the econ­
omy of the Soviet Union. The same had been the 
case the previous year, and the USSR representa­
tive had admitted it at the 150th meeting of the 
Council. Doubtless Member States were not 
obliged to provide informa.tion about their eco­
nomic lives but such information would certainly 
-be of interest. When the representative of a State 
like the Soviet Union, which claimed remarkable 
economic successes, allowed himself to make 
specific attacks against a capitalist country such as 
the United States or a socialist country such as 
the United Kingdom,' it placed his Government 
all the more under the moral obligation to provide 
certain fundamental data about the economy of 
the USSR. 

Mr. Mayhew emphasized the fact that the rep­
resentative of the Soviet Union, when speaking of 
the agricultural and industrial production of his 
country, had given 28 figures. But in 25 of those 
cases the figures were only percentages. The three 
'other figures, which were more specific, referred to 
the production of grain, the size of forests and the 
number of reservoirs. The Government of the 
USSR no longer published statistics. It only gave 
certain fragmentary figures or percentages which 
had no connexion with one another .. There were 

. no statistics ·concerning the basic products, nam~­
ly cqal, water-power, non-ferrous metals, oil, 
steel, synthetic rubber and chemical products. 

· Neither was there any information about the 
production of foodstuffs and consumer goods. 
No figures had been given about the amoun.t of 
living space available per capita, and it was· well 
known that the housing situation in Moscow was 
deplorable. Finally, since the census of 1939, the. 
S6viet authorities had not given any information 
of a demographic character and it was impossible 
to record what was the number of miscarriages 
in the USSR or the rate of infant mortality. 

The representative of the Soviet Union had 
complained about the ·lack of figures concerning 
unemployment in the Secretariat report. In that 

. connexion, it would be interesting to know what 
the Soviet authorities meant by unemployment. 
The United Kingdom Government counted as un­
employed even those people who had no employ­
ment for a very brief period. It sometimes hap­
pen('!d that the transfer from one post to another 
took several days or several weeks. In that case, 
the person concerned was considered as unem­
ployed. In those circumstances, it was norm:at 
that, in any country which had a great deal of 
manpower, transitory unemployment sometimes 
appeared to be fairly high. It would therefore be 

cordiales et construGtives et, s'il est un point sur 
Iequel il est entierement d'accord avec le repn~­
sentant de la Pologne, c'est que les relations entre 
l'URSS et Ia Pologne, par exemple, sont tout a 
fait differentes de celles qui existent entre les 
Etats-Unis et les pays participant au Plan· 
Marshall. · . 

M. MAYHEW (Royaume-Uni) regrette que 
certains discours aient porte atteinte a Ia haute 
tenue. des debats. Ces discours, prononces par les 
representants de l'URSS et de la Pologne; conte­
naient des accusations lancees contre plusieurs 
pays, dont le Royaume-Uni. Aussi M. Mayhew 
estime-t-il de son devoir de repondre. a ces 
accusations. 

Le representant du Royaume-Uni souligne que 
Ie rapport du Secretariat ne contient pas de statis­
tiques sur l'economie de !'Union sovietique. Il en 
avait et~ de meme l'annee precedente; le repre­
sentant de l'URSS au Conseil avait alors reconnu 
ce fait (150eme seance). Sans doute les Etats 
Membres ne sont-ils pas tenus de fournir des 
renseignements sur la vie economique de leur pays. 
Cependant des renseignements de ce genre pre­
senteraient un iri'teret incontestable. A plus forte 
raison Iorsque Ie representant d'un Etat comme 
!'Union sovietique qui revendique des succes 
economiques remarquables se permet de lancer des 
attaques precises contre un pays capitaliste comme 
les Etats-U nis ou un pays socialiste comme Ie 
Royaume-Uni, son Gouvernement se trouve dans 
!'obligation morale de fournir, sur l'activite eco­
nomique de l'URSS, certains renseignements 
essentiels. 

M. Mayhew souligne que le representant de 
l'Union sovietique, en faisant allusion a Ia pro­
duction agricole et industrielle· de son pays, a 
presente 28 chiffres. Mais il ne s'agissait, dans 
25 cas, que de pourcentages. Les trois autres 
chiffres, de caractere plus precis, portaient sur 
la production' de cereales, !'importance des forets 
et le nombre des reservoirs. Le Gouvernement de 
I'URSS ne publie plus de statistiques; il ne donne 
que certains chiffres fragmentaires ou certains 
pourcentages, sans aucun lien entre eux. Mais l'on 
ne dispose d'aucune statistique sur les produc-. 
tions de base: charbon, energie hydraulique, 
metaux non ferreux, petrole, acier, caoutchouc 
synthetique, produits chimiques. II n'existe non 
plus aucun renseignement sur Ia production des 
denrees .alimentaires et des biens de consomma­
tion. Aucun chiffre n'est donne sur I'espace habi­
table par tete d'habitant; or l'on sait qu'a Moscou 
les conditions de logement sont deplorables. Enfin 
les autorites sovietiques n'ont donne depuis le 
recensement de 1939 aucun renseignement de 
caractere demographique; il est impossible de 
savoir quel est le nombre d'avortements en URSS 
ou quel est le taux de la mortalite infantile. 

Le representant de !'Union sovietique s'est 
plaint du manque de chiffres relatifs au chomage 
dans le rapport du Secretariat. II serait interes­
sant a cet egar.d de savoir ce que les autorites 
sovietiques entendent par chomage. Le Gouverne­
ment du Royaume-Uni compte comme chomeurs 
meme les personnes qui; pendant un laps de temps 
tres court, n' ont ·pas d' occupation. II est possibile 
en effet que le passage d'une occupation a une 
autre necessite quelques jours ou quelques 
semaines. Dans ce cas !'interesse est considere 
comme chomeur. II est done normal dans ces 
conditions que dans tout pays disposant d'une 
imp_ortante main-d'ceuvre le chomage de transi- . 
tion presente parfois des proportions appreciables.· 

?90 



useful to know whether the Soviet authorities 
counted persons temporarily ou_t of wori( .a.mong 
the unemployed. They should gtve a deftmtwn ?£ 
unemployment and submit the figures for thetr 
country. 

He pointed out that, since 1926 the Govern­
ment of the USSR had not published any figures 

· · on the production of gold and othe: essential 
materials; no information had been gtven about 
the industrial activities of the MVD, the num­
ber of persons subjected to hard labour, the size 
of the armed forces, the cost of living, etc. 

Mr. Mayhew wondered why the Soviet authori~ 
ties maintained that veil of secrecy. If the USSR 
was . really a workers' paradise, there was no 
reasdn not to let the world know what the living 
conditions were like there. The Soviet authorities 
would doubtless reply that it was a question of 
military security. However, it might well be 
asked whether the cost of living or the number 
of miscarriages in the USSR did really affect 
the military security of the country. The Soviet 
authorities might perhaps maintain that the eco­
nomic system in the USSR was so different from 
that of other countries that it would be impossible 
to compare the figures concerning the Soviet 
Union with the information provided by the capi­
talist countries. In Mr. Mayhew's opinion, how­
ever, there was no intrinsic difference between the 

·figures concerning various basic products, whether 
those figures referred to the U:SSR or to any 
other country. Thus there should not _be any diffi­
culty in comparing the figures of infant mortality 
in all countries, whether they had capitalist or 
communist regimes. He pointed out, moreover, 

· ·that the figures concerning basic· products in the 
· Soviet ·union had been published up till 1927. 

Mr. Mayhew stated that the USSR was thus 
keeping its economic . conditions secret, because it 
wished to prolong the myth of Soviet supremacy 

· for purely propaganda purposes. It wished to 
be able to assert that its standard of living was 
the highest in the world, when in actual fact it 
was one of the lowest. The Soviet authorities 
wished to claim that the USSR was the most 
democratic country in the world, when in reality · 
it was without the shadow of a doubt the most 
totalitarian. · 

The United Kingdom representative regretted 
to have to -reply to certain allegations made 
against his country by the representative of the 
Soviet Union. The representative of the USSR, 
basing his argument on the wage index and the 
cost of living, had · stated that the standard of 
living of workers in the United Kingdom had 
fallen in 1948. Mr. Mayhew noted, in passing, that 
the periods referred to were not the same. It 
would, however, be interesting, in spite of the ab­
sence of Soviet statistics, to compare the_number 
of hours that a man would have to work in the 
United Kingdom and . in the USSR in order 
to obtain certain essential products.· In that 
connexion, he mentioned certain figures published 
recently in The Econo11tist: To buy a pound · 
of bread, a British worker had to work 7 minutes 
while a Russian had to work 70 minutes. To 
obtain Cl: pound of butter, a British worker had 
to work 370 minutes, a Russian 315 minutes. 
To obtain a pint of beer, a British worker 
had to work 220 minutes and a Russian 171 

. II serait done utile de sa voir si les autorites sovie­
tiques comptent comme ch6meurs. les persor:nes 
temporairement sans emploi. Elles devratent 
donner une definition du ch6mage et presenter 
les chiffres interessant leur pays. 

Le representant du Royaume-Uni souligne que 
depuis 1926 le Gouvernement de l'URSS n'a 
publie aucun chiffre sur la production de l'or 
et autres materiaux essentiels; i1 n'a fourni aucun 
renseignement sur les activites industrie~les du 
MVD, sur le nombre des personnes soumtses au 
travail force, sur l'irp.portance des forces armees, 
le cout. de la vie, etc. 

M. Mayhew se demande pourquoi les autorites 
sovietiques maintiennent ainsi le voile du secret. 
Si l'URSS est veritablement un paradis pour les 
travailleurs, il n'y a aucune ·raison de ne pas 

· faire connaitre au monde les conditions de vie 
dans ce pays. Sans doute les autorites sovietiques 
repondront-elles qu'il s'agit la d'une question de 
secm·ite militaire. On peut se demander cependant 
si le cout de Ia vie ou le nombre des avortements 
en URSS interessent vraiment Ia securite 'mili­
taire du pays. Les autorites sovietiques· preten­
dront peut-etre que ]e systeme economique de 
l'URSS est tellement different de celui des autres 
pays qu'il serait impossible de confronter les 
chiffres interessant !'Union sovietique avec· 1es 
renseignements fournis par les pays capitalistes. 
M. Mayhew estime cependant qu'entre les 
chiffres relatifs aux differentes productions de 
base, qu'ils se rapportent a l'URSS ou a un autre 
pays, il ne peut exister de difference de nature. 
On pourrait aussi, sans aucune difficulte, 
confronter Ies chiffres de mortalite infantile de· 
tous les pays, qu'ils soient soumis au regime 
capitaliste ou · au regime communist e. Le repre:. 
sentant du Royaume-Uni souligne que les chiffres 
interessant les productions de base de !'Union 
sovietique ont d'ailleurs ete publies jusqu'en 1927. 

M. Mayhew declare que si l'URSS conserve 
ainsi le secret sur sa situation economique c'est 
qu'elle desire continuer a maintenir, a des seules 
fins de _progagande, le mythe de Ia suprematie 
sovietique. Elle veut pouvoir affirmer que le niveau 
de vie dans ce pays est le plus eleve du monde, 
alors qu'en fait il est l'un des moins eleves. Les 
autorites sovietiques veulent pretendre que 
l'URSS est le pays le plus democratique du monde, 
alors qu'en realite c'est sans aucun doute le pays 
le plus totalitaire. 

Le representant · du . Royaume-Uni regrette 
d'avoir a repondre a certaines assertions formulees 
par le representant de !'Union sovietique a l'en­
contre de son pays. Le representant de l'URSS 
a affirme, en se fondant sur l'indice des salaires 
et du cout de la vie, que le niveau de vie des 
travailleurs britanniques avait baisse en 1948. 
M. Mayhew remarque en passant que les periodes 
de reference n'etaient pas ·1es memes. Malgre 
!'absence de statistiques sovietiques, il serait inte­
ressant cependant de comparer le nombre-d'heures 
de travail que doit effectuer un ouvrier dans le 
Royaume-Uni et en URSS pour se procurer cer­
tains produits essentiels. 11;. Mayhew cite a cet 
egard des chiffres publies recemment par la revue 
The Economist: pour acheter une livre de pain, 
un . ouvrier britannique doit travailler 7 minutes, 
un ouvrier russe 70 minutes. Pour se procurer 
une livre de beurre, un ouvrier britannique doit. 
travailler 37 minutes et demie, un ouvrier russe 
315 minutes. Pour obtenir un demi-litre de biere, 
un ouvrier britannique travaille 22 minutes et 

7()1 . 



min:utes. It would take 450 minutes' work -for a 
British worker to ear.n enough to buy a cotton 
dress and 1,915 minutes for a Russian. Finally, 
if he wished to buy a woollen suit, a British worker 
would have to work 2,700 minutes while a Russian 
worker would have to work 34,515 minutes. 

The United Kingdom representative noted that 
the representatives of the USSR and Poland had 
carried out their usual attacks against the Mar­
shall Plan, which was alleged to be an instrument 
of imperialism. In actual fact, the Marshall Plan 
was essential to the economic reconstruction of 
Western Europe. Without American help, the 
United Kingdom would never have been able to 
carry out its reconstruction efforts. The repre­
sentative of the. Soviet Union had stated that the 
Marshall Plan was an obstacle to trade relations 
between Eastern and Western Europe and that 
it contributed to the policy of aggression against 
the USSR. None of those assertions bore any rela­
tion to the facts. The Soviet authorities started 
from assumptions which perfectly suited their 
propaganda and then attempted to adapt the facts 
to those assumptions. Sometimes the representa­
tive of the Soviet Union quoted from certain news­
papers, at other times he maintained that those 
same newspapers were hysterical and did not give 
a true account of the facts . When production de­
creased in the countries of Western Europe, the 
USSR representative never failed to emphasize 
the fact. If production increased, he never men­
tioned it. If the cost of living increased in those 
countries, the representative of the Soviet Union 
maintained that the real wages of the workers had 
decreased. If the cost of living decreased, he an­
nounced that the countries concerned would soon 
suffer from · economic depression. If the industrial 
output of Germany increased, that was considered 
to be definitely aimeq against the USSR. If the 
industrial output of other Western countries de­
veloped, that was in spite of the Marshall Plan. 
If two Western countries came to an agreement, 
they were supposed to be getting together in order 
to pu:sue the same evil policy. If they disagreed, 
th~n tt was ~ case ·of a dispute between two capi­
tahst countnes: He added that there were count­
less more examples. 

The representative of the USSR had said at 
the beginning of his speech, that the United St;tes 
by exporting consumer goods to the Wester~ 
European countries under the Marshall Plan was 
subjecting them to unfair competition by fo~cing 
a reduction in prices. At the close of that speech 
he had asserted that one of the consequences of 
that Plan had been a rise in the cost of living in 
the participating countries. 

In point of fact, the economic reconstruction 
of Western Europe which was continuously im­
proving made communist propaganda look more 
and more absurd. . · · 

The representative of the Soviet Union had 
ac.cused the .Un~te? States of pursuing an imperi­
ahst and dtsc~tmmatory . trade policy. He had 
alluded to sectton 117 (d) of the United States 
Economic Cooperation Act of 1948; that section 
forbade the Marshall Plan Administration to allo­
cat~ to the O~EC goods of military importance 
.whtch. the Umted States did not wish to export. 
The .b~lateral agreement~ did not contain any such 
provtston; the Secretanat's report was in error 
on that point. 

demie et un ouvrier russe 171 minutes. L'achat 
d'une robe en eaton correspond a 450 minutes de 
tr~vail pour l'ouvrier britannique et a ' 1.915 
mmutes pour l'ouvrier russe. Enfin, s'il desire 
s'acheter un complet en Iaine, un ouvrier britan­
nique accomplit 2.700 minutes de travail alors 
qu'un ouvrier russe doit travailler 34.515 minutes. 

Le representant du Royaume-Uni rappelle que 
les representants de l'URSS et de la Pologne ont 
procede a leurs attaques coutumieres contre le 
Plan. Marshall, cjui · constituerait un instrument 
d'imperialisme. En fait, le Plan Marshall est 
essentiel a la reconstruction economique de 
!'Europe occidentale. Le Royaume-Uni n'aurait 
pu, sans l'aide americaine, poursuivre ses efforts 
de reconstruction. Le representant de l'Union 
sovietique a declare' que le Plan Marshall faisait 
obstacle aux relations commerciales entre.l'Est et 
1'_0uest de l:Europe ,et qu'il contribuait a la poli­
ttque agresstve menee contre l'URSS. Toutes ces 
assertions sont sans rapport avec les faits. Les 
autorites sovietiques posent en principe ces hypo­
theses qui conviennent parfaitement a leur propa­
g<l:nde; elles s'efforcent en:Suite d'y adapter les 
f~tts. Tantot 1~ representant de l'Union sovietique 
ctte les extratts de certains journaux, tantot il 
affirme que. ces memes journaux ne rendent 
pas fidelement compte des faits et font preuve 
d'une veritable hysterie. Lorsque la production 
des pays de !'Europe occidentale diminue le 
repr.esentant. de l'URSS ne manque pas d~ le 
souhgner. St la production augmente, il n'en fait 
nulle rp.ention. Si le coflt de la vie augmente dans 
ces memes pays, le representa·nt de l'Union sovie­
tique affirme que le salaire reel des travailleurs 
diminue. Si le cot1t de la vie diminue, il annonce 
que les pays interesses souffriront tres prochaine­
~ent ~'une cri,se eGonomiq,ue. Si la production 
mdustnelle de 1 Allemagne s accroit, cet accroisse­
ment est sans aucun doute dirige contre l'URSS. 
Si la production industrielle des autres pays occi­
dentaux se developpe, ce developpement s'effectue 
en depit du Plan Marshall. Si deux pays m:ciden­
taux se ~ettent d'accord, c'est qu'ils se concertent 
pour SU!Vre une meme politique nefaste. S'ils 
sont en desaccord, c'~t qu'il s'agit la d'un conflit 
normal entre pays capitalistes. M. Mayhew ajoute 
qu'il pourrait multiplier les exemples. 

Au debut de son discours, le representant de 
l'URSS a declare qu'en expediant leurs produits 
de _ consommation vers l'Europe occidentale les 
Etats-Unis, par l'intermediaire du Plan Mar;hall 
sou~ettaient. ces pays ~ une concurrence deloyale: 
en fatsant batsser les pnx. A la fin de son discours 
il a affirme qu'une des consequences du Pia~ 
Marshall etait la hausse du cot1t de la vie dans les 
pays beneficiaires. · 

E n fait, la reconstruction economique de 
!'Europe occidentale, qui s'accentue sans cesse, 
rend de plus en plus extravagants les arguments 
dont se sert la propagande communiste. 

M. Mayhew rappelle que le representant de 
!'Union sovietique a accuse les Etats-Unis de 
pratiquer une politique d'imperialism~ et de dis­
crimination en matiere commerciale. II a fait 
allusion a }'article 117 d) de la loi americaine 
de 1948 sur la cooperation economique: cet article 
interdit a !'administration du Plan Marshall 
d'~l}o:xer a l'OECE des produits d'importance 
mthtatre que les Etats-Unis ne desirent pas ex­
porter. Une telle disposition ne se trouve pas 
contenue dans les accords bilateraux: le rapport 
du Secretar~at a, sur ce point, commis une erreur. 

?0? 



Trade relations between Eastern and Western 
Europe had developed normally since the Marshall 
Plan had been put into operation. The trade agree­
ment between the United Kingdom and Poland 
provided for the exchange of goods to the value 
of 260 million pounds sterling over a five year 
period. In a speech made on 10 January 1949, 
the Prime Minister of Poland had expressly al­
luded to the trade relations, between his country, 
and Sweden, France and Great Britain. During the 
first ten months of 1948, the volume of trade be­
tween the United Kingdom· and the USSR had 
amounted to 31,113,000 pounds sterling; between 
the United Kingdom and Poland it had totalled 
16,340,000 pounds sterling; between the United 
Kingdom and Hungary 6 million pounds sterling; 
and between the United Kingdom and Czechoslo­
vakia 12,074,000 pounds sterling. From the very 
beginnings of the 'Marshall Plan the development 
of relations between Eastern and Western Europe 
had ,been regarded as an essential factor for its 
success. The boycott accusation was therefore dis­
proved by facts. 

The representative of the United ;Kingdom 
emphasized that, in fact, certain discriminatory 
trade practices actually existed in Europe at the 
present time. In that connexion, the trade rela­
tions between the Soviet Union and Poland on the 
one hand and with Yugoslavia on the othe·r were 
an interesting example. On 31 December 1948, the 
Soviet radio had announced that, owing to the 
unfriendly relations between the USSR and Yugo­
slavia, the volume of trade between those two 
countries had been fixed for 1949 at one-eighth 
of the 1948 total. Marshal Tito himself had spoken 
on 27 December 1948 of economic pressure and 
of methods unknown even in capitalist countries. 

The Yugoslav newspaper Borba had published, 
on 9 February 1949, an article on trade discrimi· 
nation- which emphasized the fact that, during 
recent trade negotiations between Poland and 
Yugoslavia, the Polish delegation had attempted to 
cause the greatest possible damage to Yugoslavia 
by demanding that the latter country should supply 
essential goods to Poland without any obligation 
on the part of the latter to supply a fair exchange. 
The aim of that policy was to keep Yugoslavia 
as a producer of raw materials unable to develop 
its own economy. The representative of Poland, 
therefore, could hardly accuse the Western coun­
tries of discriminatory trade practices. Statements 
by Yugoslav leaders, moreover, had on several 
occasions revealed, the methods employed by the 
Soviet Union in its efforts at the economic pene­
tration of Ea~tern Europe. Thus, in such circum­
stances, the actual facts could be compared with 
the propaganda which the Soviet authorities were 
,directing against the Marshall Plan. No Western 
country would have accepted the pressure which 
the USSR had exerted upon Yugoslavia or certain 
countries in Eastern Europe. The Soviet authori­
ties did not base, their propaganda on facts; they 
merely adopted a number of slogans and then 
attempted to make the facts fit. 

Mr. BoRIS (France) paid tribute to the high 
standard of the greater part of the debate on the 
world economic situation. All speakers without ex­
ception had put forward general statements of their 

, views, and it appeared that there was relative 

Depuis la mise en vigueur du Plan Marshall, 
les relations commerciales entre l'Est et l'Ouest 
de !'Europe se sont . developpees regulierement. 
L'accord commercial entre le Royaume-Uni et 
la Pologne prevoit des ,echanges effectues pendant 
une periode de cinq ans et representant une valeur 
de 260 millions de livres sterling. Le Premier 
Ministre de Pologne, dans un discours qu'il a 
prononce le 10 janvier 1949, a fait une allusion 
precise aux relations commerciales entre son pays 
et la Suede, la France et la Grande-Bretagne. 
Pendant les dix premiers mois de 1948, le 1119ntant 
des echanges commerciaux entre le Royaume-Uni 
et l'URSS a represente une va~eur de 31.113.000 
livres sterling; entre le Royaume-Uni et la 
Pologne, il s'est eleve a 16.340.000 livres sterling; 
entre le Royaume-Uni et la Hongrie, a 6 millions 
de livres sterling; entre le Royaume-Uni et la 
Tchecoslovaquie, a 12.074.000 livres sterling. Des 
l'origine du Plan Marshall, on a considere que le 
developpement des relations entre l'Est et l'Ouest 
de !'Europe constituait un facteur essentiel ·de 
succes pour ce Plan. L'accusation de boycottage 
est done dementie par les faits. , ' 

Le representant du Royaume-Uni souligne qp.'en 
realite il existe a l'heure actuelle en Europe 
certaines discriminations en matiere commerciale. 
A cet egard, les relations commerciales entre 
!'Union sovietique et la Pologne, d'une part, et la 
Yougoslavie, d'autre part, constituent un exemple 
interessant. Le 31 decembre 1948, la radio sovie­
tique annonc;ait que, en raison des relations inami­
cales qui existent entre l'URSS et la Yougoslavie, 
le montant des echanges commerciaux entre ces 
deux pays a ete fixe pour 1949 au huitieme du 
total des echanges effectues en 1948. Le marechal 
Tito a lui-meme parle, le 27 decembre 1948, de 
pression economique et de methodes inconn,ues 
dans les pays capitalistes eux-memes. 

Le journal yougoslave Borba a publie le 
9 fevrier 1949 un article sur les mesures discrimi­
natoires en matiere commerciale; il a souligne, 
que, au cours d~s recentes negociations com­
merciales entre la Pologne ef la Y ougoslavie, la 
delegation polonaise s'est efforcee de causer les 
plus grands torts a la Yougoslavie en ·demandant -
que ce pays procure a la Pologne des produits 
essentiels, sans que la Pologne ait a fournir .de 
contrepartie equitable. L'objet de cette politique 
est de maintenir la Y ougoslavie en tant que pro­
ducteur de matieres premieres, sans qu'elle puisse 
developper son economie. II est done difficile au 
representant de la Pologne d'accuser les _pays 
occidentaux de discrimination en matiere .com­
merciale. Par ailleurs les dirigeants yougoslaves, 
dans plusieurs declarations, ont montre les ' 
methodes qu'emploie !'Union sovietique pour pro­
ceder a une penetration economique en Europe 
orientale. II est done possible, dans ces conditions, 
de comparer la realite des faits avec la propagande 
que les aUtorites sovietiques menent contre le Plan 
Marshall. Aucun pays occidental n'eut accepte 
les pressions que l'URSS a exercees sur la Y ougo­
slavie ou sur certains pays de !'Europe de l'Est. 
Dans leur progagande, les autorites sovietiques ne 
se fondept ·nullement sur les faits, mais adoptent 
un certain nombre de slogans qu'ils s'efforcent 
ensuite de faire co!ncider avec les faits. · 

M. BoRIS (France) rend hommage a la haute 
tenue de la plus grande partie dti debat sur la 
situation economique mondiale. Tous les orateurs 
sans exception ont presente des vues generales et 
i1 semble qu'il y ait un accord assez facile sur 

293 



·-

agreement on certain principles: that the balance. 
of world economy should be established at the 
highest possible rate of production and that it 
would be dangerous for countries to resign them- ·· 
selves to a shrinkage of prod_uction or trade. More­
over, the picture submitted by the various dele­
gations of the economic situation in their countries 
had been most instructive. · 

Some of the speakers had thought fit to speak 
of the situation in countries other than their own: 
that was understandable, but he was compelled 
to .correct certain statements. 

The representatives of Poland and the USSR 
had made incorrect assertions about the economic 
situation in France and had given them. a biased 
interpretation. 

Thus, Mr .. Katz-Suchy had stated that the de- · 
' valuation of the franc at the beginning of .1948 

- had been dictated by the United States Govern­
ment. Mr. Boris thought that, in all sincerity, it 
had to be recognized that that devaluation had 
been dictated by facts : the fall in the purchasing 
power of the franc and the need to revive France's 
trade balance by correcting the prices of exports. 
The Polish representative's observations had 
moreover been greeted with smiles which showed 
that it had met with a sceptical reception. It 
would be recalled that, when the French Govern­
ment had decided to devalue the franc, that step · 
had given rise to quite lively controversy in Wash· 
ington, about ·which Mr. Katz-Suchy, although 
usually so well-informed, appeared not to have . 
heard. 

It had been stated that the United States Gov­
ernment had refused to unblock the franc counter­
part of the Marshall Plan funds ; that was incor· 
rect. The unblocking had taken place. 

- It had been asserted that the bilateral agree­
, ment between France and the United States for­
. bade France to export certain goods to the Eastern 
European countr:ies. The representative of France 
in the Second Committee of the General Assem­
bly• had formally denied that assertion. The bilat­
eral agreement between France and the United 
States had been published; there was no secret 
protocol, as Mr. Katz-Suchy had alleged. 

With regard to the biased interpretations, he 
stated that Mr. Katz-Suchy had considerably 
juggled with . percentages without mentioning 
specific figures. That was a well-known method : 
it could show that any kind of theory was true. 
He had not the slightest wish to minimize Poland's 
efforts to increase production, but it had to be 
noted that it. was difficult to compare produCtion 
in post-war Poland with that in pre-war Poland 
because its frontiers had been altered and present 
Polish territory included former German indus­
trial areas. He agreed with Mr. Thorp about the 
propaganda effects which could be obtained by 
manipulating percentages. The starting point had 
to be specified first. Thus, German production had 
been very low in 1947 and it might reasonably be 
expected to increase greatly in proportion. 

I See 0 fficial Records of the third session of the General 
Assembly, Part I, Second Committee, 72nd and 74th 
meetings. 

certains principes: l'equilibre de h!conomie 
mondiale doit s'etablir au taux de production le 
plus eleve et il serait dangereux de se resign~r a 
une contraction de-la production ou des echanges. 
En outre, Ies tableaux; presentes par les diverses 
delegations de Ia situation economique de leur pays 
ont ete tres instructifs. 

Certains orateurs ont ete amenes a . parler de 
la situation qui existe dans d'autres pays: le repre­
sentant de Ia France comprend parfaitement cela, 
mais il se trouve amene a faire certaines mises 
au point. 

Les representants de Ia Pologne et de l'URSS 
ont fait des assertions inexactes sur la situation 
economique en France et ils se sont livres a 
des interpretations tendancieuses. 

C'est ainsi que M. Katz-Suchy a affirme que Ia , 
devaluation du franc au debut de 1948 avait ete 
imposee par le Gouvernement des Etats-Unis, 
M. Boris estime que, en toute bonne foi, il £aut 
reconnaitre que cette devaluation a ete imposee 
par des faits, c'est-a-dire par la diminution du 
pouvoir d'achat du franc et la necessite de retablir 
Ia balance commerciale de Ia France en corrigeant 
les prix des. produits .d'exportation. D'ailleurs, 
cette declaration du representant de la Pologne 
a ete accueillie par des sourires, ce qui montre 
Ie scepticisme qu'elle a rencontre. Enfin, M. Boris 
rappelle que, Iorsque le Gouvernement fran<;ais a 
decide de devaluer le franc, cette mesure a suscite 
a Washington des controverses assez vives dont 
M. Katz-Suchy, d'habitude si bien informe, ne 
semble pas a voir entendu _parler. 

On a pretendu que le Gouvernement des Etats­
Unis avait refuse de debloquer Ia contrepartie en 

. francs des fonds du Plan Marshall; c'est inexact: 
le deblocage a ete obtenu. 

On a pretendu que l'accord bilateral entre la 
France et Ies Etats-Unis interdisait a Ia France 
certaines exportations a destination des pays de 
!'Europe orientale. Le representant de la France 
a la Deuxieme Commission de 1' Assemblee gene­
rale a formellement dementi cette allegation•. 
L'accord bilateral franco-americain a ete publie et 
il n'y a pas Q.e protocole secret comme Ie pretend · 
M. Katz-Suchy. · 

Passant ensuite aux interpretations tendan­
cieuses, le representant de Ia France declare que 
M. Katz-Suchy a beaucoup jongle avec les pour­
centages, sans citer de chiffres absolus. C'est la 
une methode bien connue: elle permet de demon­
trer · !'exactitude de n'importe quelle theorie. 
M. Boris declare qu'il ne veut en aucune fa<;on 
minimiser les efforts de production que fait Ia 
Pologne, mais il fait observer qu'~l est difficile Q.e 
comparer les chiffres de la production .de la 
Pologne d'avant et d'apres la guerre du fait que 
les frontieres polonaises se sont deplacees et que 
le territoire de la Pologne englobe maintenant 
d'anciennes regions industrielles allemandes. Le 
representant de la Francese declare d'accord avec 
M .. Thorp sur l'effet de propagande qu'on peut 
tirer d'une manipulation des pourcentages. II £aut 
tout d'abord preciser quel est le point de depart; 
ainsi, Ia production allemande etait tres faible en 
1947 et il est done normal qu'elle se developpe 
beaucoup proportionnellement. 

I Voir les Docmnents o fficiels de Ia troisieme session de 
l'Assemblee generale, premiere partie, Deuxieme Coin­
mission, 72eme et . 74eme seances. 

294 



,Mr. Boris pointed 'out a contradiction' in that 
connexion: the Polish represent~tive had deplored 
the rapid recovery of Germany economy, whereas 
the USSR repres_entatlve had complained lhat the 
Western Powers were hampering its progress. 

With regard to the assertions concerning France 
.and the biased interpretations of the ~ituation in 
that country, he recalled-that the dominant feature 
of the economic situation of his· country in 1947 
had beep .a disastrous harvest which had had the 
most serious repercussions on the economy as a 
whole. The representatives of Poland and the 
USSR, for the sake of their own arguments, re­
garded those repercussions as a result of the 
Marshall Plan, whereas in fact they had been the 
sequel to an unprecedented drought during the 
spring and summer _of 1947. The logic of such 
reasoning was not convincing· and it would more-

. over recoil upon the authors -of that argument if 
the excellent harvest of 1948 were taken into 
account. 

At the present time, a . perceptible reduction in 
the cost of living could be noted in France: would 
the Polish representative claim that that was the 
Marshall Plan's fault? In general, Mr. Katz­
Suchy's technique was to consider everything good 

. to have been achieved despite the Marshall Plan 
and everything bad as being its direct result. There 
was a touch of humour about such a theory but it 
could hardly be used to support an economic 
theory: . · 

The representative of Poland spoke about the 
·fall in real wages in France during the first nine 
months of 1948. Mr. Boris quoted in that respect 
the relevant figures published in the United 
Nations' Monthly Bulletin of Statistics, which 
proved that the wage rate per hour had risen from 
57.93 to 87.54 between October 1947 andOctober 
1948 which showed, in other words, an increase 
of 50 per cent, while the cost of living index during 
the same period had risen only from 1,515 to 2,203, 
or 45 per cent. Moreover, that index related only 
to foodstuffs, in which the increase had been most 
perceptible as a result of the bad harvest. The 
Bulletin de la statistique generate de la France. 
showed in fact that the over-all cost of living index 
had risen only from 1,501 to 2,024, or 34 per cent· 
between November 1947 and November 1948. It 
was therefore incorrect to say that real wages had 
fallen; they had actually risen slightly. The repre­
sentative of Poland most probably based his · 
calculations on the situation on the eve of a wage 
increase or the day after a rise in prices, an easy 
thing to do when a country was in an inflationary 
situation. It was true that the purchasing power 
of wages had fallen during the first seven or eight 
months of 1948; but that applied to all French­
men; it was the direct result of the had harvest in 
1947. 

The i947 grain harv-est had been only 51 per 
cent of the average 1934-1938 crop. It might well 
be· asked what the situation would have been had 
there been no Marshall Plan at that time. French­
men knew the answer and wouid not forget. Mr: 
Katz-Suchy' s propaganda had no effect on French 
public opinion. · 

The French Government had been obliged to 
devote the major part of the Marshall Plan credits 

A ce sujet, M. BorisreU:ve une contradiction; 
le representant de Ia Pologne deplore le releve­
ment rapide de l'economie allemand~, alors qtie 
le representant de_l'URSS se plaint de ce que les 
Puissances occidentales entravent le developpe-
ment de cette ec6n,omie. . 

En ce qui concerne les allegations relatives a 
Ia France et les interpretations partiales auxquelles 
on s'est livre au sujet de Ia situation dans 'son pays, 
M. Boris rappelle que le fait dominant de l'eco­
nomie franc;aise en 1947 a ete une recolte desas­
treuse, qui a eu des consequences tres graves pour 
l'econon'l.ie dans son ensemble. Les representants 

-de Ia Pologne et de l'URSS considenint, pour.les 
besoins de Ia cause, que ces consequences sont 
celles du Plan Marshall, alors qu'en fait elles 
furent le resultat d'une secheresse sans precedent 
qui sevit pendant le printemps et l'ete de 1947. 
II y a dans ce raisonnement une logique ·qui n!est 
pas convaincante et qui se retourne d'ailleurs 
contre les auteurs de cette these si l'on considere 
l'excellente recolte de 1948. 

On constate en· ce moment une diminution 
sensible du prix de Ia vie en France: le repre­
sentant de Ia Pologne pretendra-t-il que c'est Ia 
faute du Plan Marshall? De fac;on generale, Ia · 
technique de M. Katz-Suchy consiste a considerer 
que tout ce qui est bien . a ete fait eri depit du 
Plan Marshall, alors que tout ce qui est mal en 
est la consequence d'irecte. Cette · theotjie ne 
manque pas d'humour, mais peut difficilement 
servir a etayer une these economique . . 

Le representant de Ia Pologne par~e de Ia 
baisse des salaires reels en France au cours des 
neuf premiers mois de 1948. M. Boris cite ~ ce 
sujet les chiffres publies dans le Bulletin ~ensuel 
de statistique des Nations Unies, chiffres qui prou­
vent que le taux horaire des salaires est passe de 

. 57,93 a 87,54 entre octobre 1947 et octobre 1948, 
soit une augmentation de 50 pour 100, alors que 
dans Ia meme periode l'indice du coftt de la vie a 
augmente seulement de 1.515 a 2.203, soit de 45 . · 
pour 100. D'a.illeurs, cet indice ne coricerne que les 
produits alimentaires, ou !'augmentation avait ete 
Ia plus sensible a cause de Ia mauvaise recolte. 11 
ressort du Bltlletin de · lei statistique generate de 
la France que, de novembre 1947 a nove.mbre 
1948, l'indice general du coftt- de Ia vie n'a_aug­
mente que de 1.501 a 2.024, sqit de 34 pour 100. 
II est done inexact de dire que les salaires reels 
ont diminue; en fait, ils ont h!gerement augmente. 
Le representant de Ia Pologne a du probablement 
·fain! ses calculs en partant de ·Ia · veille d'une 
augmentation de salaires ou du lendemain d'i.me 
hausse des prix, ce qu'il est aise de faire lorsqu1un 
pays se trouve dans une situation inflationniste. 
II est exact que, pendant les sept ou huit premiers 
mois de 1948, le-pouvoir d'achat des salaires ait 
diminue mais cette remarque est vraie pour taus 
Ies Franc;ais: il s'agit de Ia consequence directe 
de Ia mauvaise recolte de 1947. 

La n!colte de cereales de 1947 a ete seulement 
51 pour 100 de Ia recolte moyenne pour Ia periode 
1934-1938. On peut se demander. queUe aurait ete 
la situation s'il n'y avait pas eu a ce moment le 
Plan Marshall. Les Franc;ais connaissent Ia reponse 
et ne l'oublieront pas. La propagande de M. Katz.:. 
Suchy ne touche pas !'opinion franc;aise. 

. Le Gouvernement franc;ais a du consacrer une 
plus grande partie des credits du Plan Marshall 

' . 



to the purchase of foodstuffs; Mr. Katz-Suchy, 
therefore, ought not . be surprised if French im­
ports of capital goods had fallen from 1947 to 1948. 
Purchases un·der the Marshall Plan comprised 
foodstuffs, raw materials and capital goods. The 
French Government had chosen to reduce pttr­
chases of the latter; by maintaining imports of 
raw materials it had been possible to·increase in­
dustrial production. The ratio of imports of those 
three different categories of goods would be more 
normal in 1949. 

In conclusion he observed that Mr. Katz-Suchy 
had also supplied constructive material · in his 
statement. He regretted that more accurate statis­
tics relating to the Eastern European countries 
were not available, but said that he was glad to 
hear the Polish representative express the wish 
that his country should increase trade with West­
ern Europe. 

France had always sought to encourage such 
development; but Mr. Boris observed that the re­
sults depended largely upon what each country 
could afford to export. It was not always possible 
to offer another country everything that it desired. 
In any case, there appeared to be unanimous agree­
ment about the need for extensive trade between 
Eastern and Western Europe. He hoped that fresh 
factors, such as the new programme of technical 
assistance contemplated by the United States, 
would help all countries to come closer to a com-
mon objective. · 

The meeting rose at 5.15 p.m. 

TWO HUNDRED AND FIFTY-FIRST 
MEETING 

Held at Lake Success, New York, 
on Friday, 25 February 1949, at 11 a.m. 

President: Mr. James T HoRN (New Zealand). 

53. Continuation of the discussion on 
the world economic situation ( "Ma­
jor Economic Changes in 1948", 
"Review of International Commodity · 
Problems, 1948", E/1111, E/ 
1111/ Add.1, E/1084, E/1180 and 
E/1190) 

Mr. KATZ-SUCHY (Poland) said he wished to 
reply to the statements made at the previous meet­
ing by the representatives of the United Kingdom, 
the United States and France who had directly 
attacked certain parts of his own statement to the 
Council on 23 February 1949 (248th meeting). 

The United States representative had referred to 
high and low levels of discussion in the Council, 
modestly including his own statements among the 
first category, whereas those made· by the USSR 
and Polish representatives had been classed in the 
second. Indeed, the division was a very simple one: 
all those who boarded the United States "gratitude 
train" belonged to the higher category. Mr. Katz­
Suchy added that for his part he would never lower 

a 1'achat de produits alimentaires; c'est pourquoi 
M. Katz-Suchy ne devrait pas s'etonner que, de 
1947 a 1948, les importations en France de biens 
d'equipement aient diminue. En fait, les achats 
au titre du Plan Marshall sont constitues par des 
produits alimentaires, des matieres premieres et 
des biens d'equipement. Le Gouvernement a choisi 
de reduire ces derniers·; en maintenant les im­
portations de matieres premieres, on a pu ainsi 
augmenter la, production industrielle. La propor­
tion entre les importations de ces trois categories 
de produits sera plus normale en 1949. 

En conclusion, le representant de !a France 
constate que M. Katz-Suchy a egalement fourni 
dans sa declaration des elements constructifs. Il 
regrette que !'on ne dispose pas de statistiques plus 
preci~es en ce qui concerne les pays de !'Europe 
orientale, mais il se declare heureux que le repre­
sentant de !a Pologne exprime le desir de voir 
son pays developper ses echanges commerciaux 
avec !'Europe occidentale. 

La France a constamment cherche a encourager 
un tel developpement. Mais M. Boris rappelle que 
les resultats dependent dans une large mesure 
de ce que chaque pays peut se permettre d'ex­
porter. Il n'est pas toujours possible d'offrir a 
un autre pays tout ce que celui-ci desire. En tout 
cas, l'unanimite semble s'etre realisee sur la neces­
site d'echanges commerciaux considerables entre 
!'Europe occidentale et !'Europe orientale. 
M. Boris exprime l'expoir que des elements 
nouveau~, comme par exen1ple le nouveau pro­
gramme d'aide technique qu'envisagent les Etats­
Unis, aideront tous les pays a se rapprocher d'un 
but commun. 

La seance est levee a 17 h. 15. 

DEUX-CJENT-CINQUANTE ET UNIEME 
SEANCE 

Tentte a Lake Success, New-York, 
le vendredi 25 jevrier 1949, a 11 heures. 

President: M. James THoRN (Nouvelle-Zelande) . 

53. Suite dela discussion sur Ia situation 
economique mondiale ( "Les change· 
ments principaux dans le ·domaine 
economique en 1948", "Rapport 
sur les problemes : internationaux 
rela1tifs aux produits de base, 1948", 
E/1111, E/1111/Add.1, E/1084, 
E/1180 et E/1190) 

M. KATZ-SUCHY (Pologne) desire repondre 
aux observations des representants du Royaume­
Uni, des Etats-Unis et de la France qui, lors de 
la seance precedente, ont attaque directement 
certaines parties de la declaration qu'il a faite au 
Conseil le 23 fevrier 1949 ( 248eme seance). 

Le representant des Etats-Unis a fait allusion a 
la tenue tantot plus et tantot mains elevee des dis­
cussions du Conseil et a modestement range ses 
prop res declarations parmi les interventions · de 
haute tenue, tandis que celles des representap.ts de 
l'URSS et de la Pologne appartiendraient, selon lui, 
a !'autre categorie. II faut dire que la distinction 
est tres simple: tous ceux qui sont prets a dire : 
"Merci, America" se classent dans la premiere cate-




